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Our large, long-life and high-quality construction aggregates
deposits, highly competitive shipping and logistics, strong team
and solid long-term customer relationships have set the stage
for Polaris to grow into one of the leading aggregate producers
on the west coast of North America. 

Our business is building steadily... from strength to strength.

Nighttime operations at the Orca Quarry



HAWAII VANCOUVER



OUVER SAN FRANCISCO

Every day, Orca Quarry products
are used to build high-quality
buildings and infrastructure
elements that will stand for
generations in Honolulu,
Vancouver and San Francisco. 

Other west coast cities need 
our products too...



The Orca Quarry sold 
1.15 million tons of high
quality sand and gravel 
in 2007, its first year of
production. 

Sales are expected to
increase dramatically over
the next several years as 
the quarry approaches its
6.6 million tons per year
permitted production level. 

We are growing...



CSL Acadian arriving in San Francisco Bay fully loaded
with sand and gravel from the Orca Quarry.

Bulk carriers can efficiently
deliver construction
aggregates from the quarry
into the hearts of the cities
where Polaris’ customers
operate.
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• Completed development of the Orca Quarry, on-

schedule and on-budget.

• Produced 1.40 million tons of material in 2007, the

first year of operations.

• Sold 1.15 million tons of sand and gravel into

California, Hawaii and Vancouver, exceeding the

Company’s initial targets and feasibility study 

projections.

• Secured a long-term Strategic Alliance with Cemex,

one of the world’s leading construction materials

companies.

• Secure additional port terminal capacity in the

company’s various target markets, with special

emphasis on Southern California.

• Significantly increase the resource inventory 

supporting the Orca Quarry, setting the stage

for maximizing output.

• Secure additional customers for Orca Quarry

and proposed Eagle Rock Quarry.

• Complete Eagle Rock Quarry feasibility study.

• Continue smooth production ramp-up at the

Orca Quarry, while maintaining an exemplary

safety and environmental record.

• Improve operating margins.

• Completed construction at the Richmond Terminal

in California with a substantial reduction in capital

cost from the feasibility study.

• Ended the year with strong balance sheet, including

$15.2 million in cash and cash equivalents and, with

the exception of capital leases, no debt.

• Secured 2.8 million tons of additional annual 

shipping capacity, beginning in 2010.

• Secured the right to purchase a 12.4 acre terminal

site in the Port of Long Beach, California.

2007
HIGHLIGHTS

2008 
GOALS

Stockpiles Inside the Richmond Terminal
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The success achieved in our inaugural year of

operation is considerable, and is a testament to the

strength of our team; to the remarkable relationships

we have forged in all elements of the supply chain; and

to the tremendous cooperation of our customers. We

now are firmly poised to achieve our ambitious

objectives.

Setting the Stage for Growth
We have set the stage to grow into one of the largest

and most efficient aggregate producers on the west

coast of North America and we expect production to

continue increasing for several years.

We took an important step toward achieving this growth

plan in September 2007 when we formed a Strategic

Alliance with Cemex USA, Inc., a leading construction

materials company both worldwide and on the U.S.

west coast. The agreement establishes Polaris as the

exclusive supplier of marine transported aggregates to

Cemex in California, Oregon and Washington. Cemex,

in turn, becomes the exclusive distributor for Orca

Quarry products in these markets, excepting four

counties in Northern California. Cemex is also

expected to become a distributor for products from our

proposed Eagle Rock Quarry, situated near Port

Alberni, Vancouver Island. Additionally, Cemex and

Polaris will partner in seeking the development of new

port terminals within the three State area. Cemex

brings to the Strategic Alliance immediate and

I am pleased to report that 2007 was a great year for

Polaris as we successfully completed the construction

of a major coastal aggregates quarry and commenced

strong sales to customers in California, Vancouver and

Hawaii.

Early in the year, we commissioned the Orca Quarry

on Vancouver Island, British Columbia, on schedule

and on budget and dispatched the first bargeload of

sand and gravel to Vancouver on March 20, 2007. This

was closely followed by the first Panamax shipment of

concreting aggregate from the quarry to San Francisco

on April 1. We also completed, at a cost significantly

below the original budget, the Richmond Terminal, the

first Polaris aggregate receiving, storage and

distribution facility in California.

During the first 12 months of operations, ending March

2008, we exceeded our sales projection by 10% and

produced almost 2.1 million tons of high-quality sand

and gravel to meet the requirements of our growing

customer base. This level of production exceeded our

original goal by 17%, and, importantly, this milestone

was achieved without a single lost-time accident.

Quarry operating costs were in line with feasibility study

estimates and productivity was higher than projected.

Financially, Polaris ended 2007 in a strong position.

We raised $62 million in equity during the year, which

strengthened our balance sheet and enabled the

repayment of a $31 million bridge financing. At year-

end, we had over $15 million in cash and, with the

exception of capital leases, were debt free.

“As excellent as the initial year
of operations was, and as
productive as the Orca Quarry
and logistical arrangements
proved to be, we nevertheless
will continue to strive for
improvement.”

Marco Romero, President & CEO
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exclusive access to two port terminals in the San

Francisco Bay area, with a third terminal being built in

Sacramento. Cemex and Polaris are evaluating several

other port terminal opportunities in urban areas along

the West Coast, especially in southern California where

the two companies are focusing on the Ports of Long

Beach and San Diego. Of particular importance is an

opportunity to develop a terminal within Pier B in the

Port of Long Beach, where Polaris, through its subsidiary

company Eagle Rock Aggregates Inc., recently acquired

the right to purchase the 12.4-acre property.

Meeting Strong Demand for High-
quality Aggregates
We believe that sand and gravel from the Orca Quarry

have set a new benchmark for quality in our target

markets, and that this competitive advantage is helping

us to increase our sales despite a weakening in overall

demand. Our customers have limited local aggregate

supply options, particularly for high quality products,

and so securing reliable, long-term supplies of marine

imported aggregates is becoming a vital element in

their long-term growth strategies. By using sand and

gravel from the Orca Quarry, our customers also

achieve direct cost savings by eliminating the

requirement to blend material from multiple sources of

supply, and in some cases, by reducing the amount of

cement required to meet prescribed strength

requirements.

Demand for aggregates from the private home-building

sector in California weakened in 2007, although the

effect was partly mitigated by increased commercial

and public-sector construction. Overall, demand for

aggregates in California was down by 21.4% in 2007

compared with 2006. We expect demand to decline

further in 2008 before resuming its historic correlation

to population growth, perhaps by early 2010. We also

expect that prices will continue to reflect inflationary

pressures particularly brought about by rapidly

increasing fuel costs, and will begin to increase

strongly again at the commencement of the next

growth cycle. In the short- to medium-term, we foresee

demand for aggregate in California being positively

influenced by the 20-year infrastructure program

initiated by the California government in 2007 at an

estimated cost of US$220 billion. We anticipate that

increasing public-sector demand and the annual

contractual commitments of California customers will

insulate Polaris from much of the short term turmoil in

the California market. In the longer term we are well

positioned to benefit from the inevitable resumption of

demand.

We initiated sales in 2007 to customers in Vancouver,

British Columbia, and Hawaii and expect these and

other smaller markets to become a significant part of

our business.

Planning for Quarry Expansion 
In October 2007, we delivered the maiden shipment of

56,000 tons of sand and gravel from the Orca Quarry

to the Richmond Terminal in San Francisco Bay which

is owned and operated by Eagle Rock Aggregates Inc.

The terminal’s highly automated and sophisticated

design sets a standard for other west coast ports

seeking to build environmentally compatible aggregate

importation facilities. Sales from the Richmond Terminal

are rapidly increasing as new customers recognize the

high quality and availability of our products.

In December 2007, we secured additional shipping

capacity up to 2.8 million tons per year starting in 2010

with CSL International. This is in addition to the current

contract that provides for up to 5 million tons per year

of shipping capacity. By locking in shipping capacity,

we are assured of long-term shipping availability and

stable fixed costs at a time when short-term shipping

costs are highly volatile. The excellent working

relationship we enjoy with CSL is a most valuable asset.

Based on customer expectations as at April 2008, we

anticipate shipping between 2.9 and 3.2 million tons of

aggregates in 2008, significantly higher than the 

1.18 million tons shipped in 2007.

As demand for products from the Orca Quarry grows,

attention will be turned to increasing production at the

quarry beyond the originally designed capacity of 

6.6 million tons per year. In the interest of extending the
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life of the Orca Quarry, additional aggregate resources

must be identified and geological studies and

exploration work to date suggest that there is excellent

potential to find more sand and gravel adjacent to the

Orca Quarry. Accordingly, in 2008 we plan exploratory

drilling to determine to what degree we can substantially

increase the resource base which could enable a

significant production increase and extend the quarry

life to well beyond the initial estimate of 25 years.

I am also pleased to report that we recently engaged

AMEC to complete a bankable feasibility study for our

proposed Eagle Rock Quarry and expect to have the

study completed by the end of the third quarter of

2008. Subject to a positive feasibility study and to

securing customer contracts and financing, Eagle Rock

Quarry, which already benefits from existing development

permits, has the potential to become one of the largest,

most cost-effective and long-lived quarries in North

America.

Focused on Sustainable
Development 
We are extremely proud of the benefits delivered to the

local communities in which we operate. We provide

rewarding employment to local people and play an

increasingly valuable role in diversifying the regional

economy. The Orca Quarry team members generate

ideas for efficiency improvements and play a role in

maintaining a safe, challenging and rewarding

workplace. We are fostering a culture of caring for team

members, for the environment and for the communities

in which we operate. The Safety First motto at the Orca

Quarry is reflected in our zero lost-time accidents since

inception of the project. Overall, our approach to

corporate social responsibility is paying dividends.

Shareholders see increased productivity and

decreasing risk, employees gain a valued and safe

work environment and host communities acquire

valuable economic benefits that extend to the region of

which they are a part.

We are also proud of the special relationship we enjoy

with the Kwakiutl First Nation, Namgis First Nation,

Hupacaseth First Nation and Ucluelet First Nation.

As excellent as the initial year of operations was, and

as productive as the Orca Quarry and logistical

arrangements proved to be, we nevertheless will continue

to strive for improvement. We will raise operational

productivity, increase long-term cost effectiveness, and

fine-tune facilities to grow our business and heighten

our competitive advantage. I predict strong and

sustainable growth at Polaris in 2008.

I would like to conclude by acknowledging those who

have made the Polaris dream possible. I thank my

Board of Directors for their wisdom and advice,

employees for their dedication and hard work,

customers for their confidence, and partners for their

professionalism and trust. Finally, I thank you our

shareholders for having the vision to recognize value

before it was immediately obvious and for giving us the

means to bring all the parts of the puzzle together. This

is your project, and our success is your success.

Again, thank you.

Marco Romero

President and Chief Executive Officer
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Polaris provides sand and
gravel for the highest
profile construction jobs 
in California, including the
new San Francisco-
Oakland Bay Bridge.
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The Polaris marketing
strategy is to secure long-
term purchase and supply
agreements with leading
ready-mix concrete
producers within its target
markets.

Highway overpass under construction in Petaluma. Concrete
provided by Polaris customer Shamrock Materials.
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Overview
The Polaris sales and marketing strategy is to secure

long-term purchase and supply agreements with

leading ready-mix concrete producers within its target

markets. These customers rely on Polaris to meet their

need for high-quality sand and gravel, which the Orca

Quarry is ideally suited to deliver. Additionally, each

customer brings something special to the relationship,

making the combination stronger than its component

parts. Polaris believes that its long-term supply

agreements will enable it to increase sales of sand and

gravel from the Orca Quarry significantly over the next

few years despite difficult overall market conditions

brought about primarily by the slowdown in private

house building.

Customer Profiles

Cemex USA, Inc.

On September 26, 2007, Polaris, through its subsidiary

Eagle Rock Aggregates Inc. (ERA)  signed a significant

aggregate supply and distribution agreement for a long-

term strategic alliance with Cemex USA, Inc. (Cemex),

a subsidiary of Cemex SA de CV, one of the world’s

leading building materials companies. Cemex is a

major aggregate producer, distributor and consumer of

construction aggregate in California, Oregon and

Washington.

Through this agreement, Polaris and Cemex entered

into a Strategic Alliance intended to develop the supply

and distribution of marine-transported construction

aggregates in the States of California, Oregon and

Washington. In the case of Northern California, the

parties have now entered into an aggregate supply and

distribution agreement which places substantial supply

and purchase obligations on Polaris and Cemex,

excluding the four northern California counties of

Marin, Sonoma, Mendocino and Napa. Those counties

fall under a supply and distribution agreement between

Polaris and Shamrock Materials, Inc., (Shamrock)

which remains unaffected by the Strategic Alliance with

Cemex.

Once a market area is defined and agreed, Cemex

becomes the exclusive distributor of Polaris products.

Polaris, in turn, becomes the exclusive supplier to

Cemex of marine-transported construction aggregates

for Cemex’s internal use and for sales by Cemex to

third parties.

Polaris has already commenced sand and gravel

shipments from its Orca Quarry to two Cemex

terminals in San Francisco Bay and to the majority-

owned Polaris terminal in Richmond, California. Cemex

is also constructing a third receiving terminal for Polaris

products, in Sacramento, California. In addition, the two

companies have combined their significant resources

to identify, secure and permit additional terminal sites

along the U.S. west coast for the development of

additional construction aggregate receiving terminals.

The importance of this strategic alliance to both parties

cannot be understated. In a market facing increasing

shortages of high-quality resources, Cemex benefits by

ensuring a long-term supply of the high-quality

materials vital to its ongoing business. Polaris benefits

by gaining immediate access to new markets by

securing sales to one of the largest ready-mixed

concrete companies and by combining with Cemex to

increase the number of terminals in the coming years.

Marine aggregate supply and distribution terminals are

rare and strategic assets. The control of such assets

ensures that Polaris has long-term access to major

coastal cities within its served market area.

The two Cemex terminals in San Francisco Bay can

also be serviced by barges, which increases the

existing and potential lightering capacity to optimize

Polaris’ utilization of contracted shipping capacity and

maintain its continuing competitive advantage of low

shipping costs from British Columbia.

SALES AND MARKETING
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Shamrock Materials, Inc.

The 20-year supply agreement that Polaris, through

ERA, signed with Shamrock Materials, Inc., (Shamrock)

in 2005 was the first contract obtained for the supply of

sand and gravel from the Orca Quarry and was

important in paving the way for the development of the

quarry. Under the agreement, which places minimum

annual supply and purchase obligations on both

parties, Shamrock takes delivery of sand and gravel

into its own fleet of barges, which are loaded directly

from CSL Panamax vessels in San Francisco Bay. The

loaded barges are then moved up the Petaluma River

and off-loaded at a storage and distribution terminal

utilized by Shamrock in Petaluma, in the heart of the

north San Francisco Bay market.

This arrangement is advantageous for Polaris because

San Francisco Bay terminals available for landing

construction aggregates are generally in shallow-water

ports. Ships fully laden with Orca product are able to

enter the bay, lighter material into barges, allowing

them to proceed with reduced draft to the shallow-water

terminals and discharge their remaining cargo. Polaris

is thus able to load the maximum amount of cargo at

the Orca Quarry and minimize shipping costs per ton.

The trust that Shamrock placed in the Polaris team by

committing to a long-term agreement before the quarry

was constructed is a testament to the strong

relationship between the two companies.

Burnco Rock Products

Burnco Rock Products (Burnco), a leading independent

Western Canadian building materials company, entered

into a five-year supply agreement commencing March

2007 with Polaris to purchase sand and gravel from the

Orca Quarry for its ready-mixed concrete operations in

Vancouver, British Columbia. Burnco is responsible for

arranging barge transportation from the Orca Quarry to

its two terminals on the Fraser River. Burnco has

incorporated sand and gravel from the Orca Quarry in

ready-mixed concrete supplied to several high-profile

construction jobs in Vancouver, including high-rise

residential and commercial buildings and various

infrastructure projects.

Burnco’s barging requirements are met by Seaspan,

the west coast’s largest operator of ocean-going

barges. Seaspan has recently taken delivery of two

newly built, 6,000-ton-barges to replace two 3,500-ton

barges that had previously been used to deliver Orca

products to Burnco. This expanded barging capacity

will enable Burnco to increase its purchases of Orca

sand and gravel as required in the supply agreement.

Grace Pacific Corporation 

and Hawaiian Cement

During 2007, Polaris began supplying sand to Grace

Pacific Corporation and Hawaiian Cement in Hawaii.

The shipping element of the contracts is arranged by

the customers, and the material is landed at the

Barbers Point terminal on the Island of Oahu to serve

the ready-mix concrete industry in Honolulu.

The demand for construction
aggregates is driven by a
combination of private and
public investment in houses,
commercial buildings and
infrastructure construction
and maintenance.
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Supply and Demand of Construction
Aggregates in the Markets Served
by Polaris Minerals Corporation

Overview

The demand for construction aggregates is driven by a

combination of private and public investment, in

houses, commercial buildings, and infrastructure

construction and maintenance. Total private sector

demand has traditionally been around 57% while the

public sector accounts for 43%.

Cycles occur in private and public investment over

time. But it has been to the benefit of the construction

industry as a whole that there has traditionally been a

counter-cyclical trend between private and public

investment such that the resultant demand has been

less volatile than in any individual sector. This historic

cyclical balancing is evident in the present downturn,

where residential house building is at record lows in

many markets throughout the United States and

particularly in those states which have experienced

high levels of house building and value appreciation

during the last few years.

During 2006 and 2007, both private commercial

investment and public sector projects for new and

maintained infrastructure increased the level of

construction activity and therefore the demand for

aggregates. Polaris believes that the historic counter-

cyclical trend will continue to be in evidence during this

period of overall downturn, thus mitigating the harsh

effect of the slowdown in private house building.

Nevertheless, the total demand for construction

aggregate in the United States, including sand and

gravel and crushed rock, fell 15.8% from 3.35 billion

tons in 2006 to 2.82 billion tons in 2007.

Despite this volume decline, the value of all aggregate

sold in 2007 increased from $22.4 billion to $22.6

billion, a 19.8% increase per ton reflecting higher

operating, distribution and replacement costs (USGS

Mineral Industry Surveys, March 2008). During this

period of significant downturn, Polaris increased its

sales from zero to 1.15 million tons.

California

California is the second-largest U.S. consumer of

construction aggregate behind Texas. In 2007,

California used 180 million tons of aggregate compared

with 229 million tons in 2006, a decline of 21.4%.

During this two-year period, the average value per ton

at the quarry of sold products increased 9.5%.

For Polaris, however, it is important to understand that

California is the largest consumer of sand and gravel in

the United States, requiring 169 million tons in 2007, or

approximately 14% of national demand. Compared with

2006, California’s demand for sand and gravel in 2007

fell 22.2%, with the average value per ton at the quarry

increasing 10%.

The decline in the domestic housing sector was the

major contributing factor in the 2007 demand reduction

and opinions vary on when the trough will be reached.

In the opinion of Polaris, it is unlikely that the upside of

the cycle will be experienced before 2009 despite the

fact that the median value of houses in California has

fallen to a level that makes home ownership more

available to a wider population. In the long-term,

demand for housing will reflect population growth which

the U.S. Census Bureau projects to increase by more

than 1% per annum to 2020.

To accommodate the infrastructure requirements of a

larger population, coupled with the urgent need to meet

immediate infrastructure shortcomings, California is

embarking on an estimated $220 billion, 10-year

infrastructure budget. During the next 20 years, the

California Department of Finance estimates that

California will need over $500 billion to meet urgent

infrastructure requirements. A plentiful supply of high-

quality construction aggregate is a prerequisite for a

successful outcome to California’s infrastructure

planning and Polaris believes that it is well-positioned

to meet part of this need.

The well-documented decline in locally available

construction aggregate in Northern and Southern

California and the intense opposition to the

development of alternative quarries within economical

delivery distances of major markets, demands

alternative supply solutions. Transportation costs are

increasingly the dominant component of the price of

vital construction products, so cost-effective sea freight

rates will increasingly influence the attractiveness of
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Polaris materials, including sand and gravel from the

Orca Quarry and, when production commences,

granite aggregate from the Eagle Rock Quarry.

Amid the present construction aggregates demand

downturn, Polaris expects, through its Strategic

Alliance with Cemex and its long-term supply contract

with Shamrock, to increase sales of sand and gravel in

Northern California based on quality, availability and

cost effectiveness. In addition, Polaris is engaged with

Cemex in establishing new marine supplied terminals in

California. If this strategy is successful, Polaris believes

that it will be ideally and uniquely positioned to take full

advantage of the cyclical upturn expected in 2010.

Hawaii

The Hawaiian Islands consumed 10.5 million tons of

construction aggregate in 2006. Although official 2007

statistics are not yet available, it is thought that the

overall demand for aggregates in 2007 has remained at

or close to 2006 levels.

The islands’ largest area of population and therefore

construction activity is on Oahu, particularly in

Honolulu. Although some reduction in privately funded

single dwellings construction has occurred, apartment,

condominium and hotel building has been brisk,

assisted by military and infrastructure expenditures.

Polaris expects that these factors together with the

commencement of a major mass-transit project in 2009

and 2010 and the resumption of tourism-related

investments, will provide a solid base of construction

activity for the foreseeable future.

Intense environmental opposition to local quarrying

and beach removal to provide concreting sand is

forcing building materials suppliers to turn to imported

aggregate alternatives. As a consequence, Polaris has

commenced supplying the two major producers on

Oahu in 2007 and expects to increase deliveries of

sand and gravel from the Orca Quarry through 2008.

Vancouver

Demand for construction aggregate in the Greater

Vancouver area remained high during 2007 and is

expected to continue at high levels in 2008.

Commercial construction is particularly robust. High-

rise residential building is offsetting some reduction in

single dwellings, and mass-transit projects are leading

to housing densification at transit connection points.

Pre-2010 Winter Olympics infrastructure improvements

are working through the system, but Polaris believes

that the five-year supply contract it has in place with its

Vancouver-based ready-mix concrete customer

represents a significant opportunity to increase sales

from the Orca Quarry in accordance with contractual

projections.



FROM STRENGTH TO STRENGTH 13

A plentiful supply of high-
quality construction
aggregate is a prerequisite
for a successful outcome to
California’s infrastructure
planning and Polaris believes
that it is well-positioned to
meet part of this need.
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Tractor scrapers efficiently
collect the loosely
consolidated raw material
and carry it to the dump
hopper.
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WORLD CLASS QUARRIES

Polaris draws much of its strength from

the Earth itself. Polaris has discovered

and permitted two large deposits that

are well on the way to becoming world-

class quarries.

The first, Orca Quarry, is in production

and is already making a significant

impact in its target markets. 

The second quarry is the proposed

Eagle Rock Quarry, which is permitted

for mining and currently undergoing a

feasibility study, in preparation for its

anticipated development.

Eagle Rock Quarry (proposed)

Product: High quality crushed granite

Target application: Asphalt paving

Resource: 757 million tons*

Status: Permitted for 6.6 million tons 
per year production, feasibility
study partially completed

Ownership: Polaris 70%, 
Hupacasath 10%, Ucluelet 10%, 
Tseshaht 10% (in trust)

* The Resource Numbers have been verified by a Qualified 
Person under NI 43-101. Please refer to the Company AIF 
dated March 31, 2008 (stated in short tons).

Orca Quarry

Product: High quality sand  and gravel

Target application: Ready-mix concrete

Reserve: 134 million tons*

Status: Producing and shipping
Permitted for 6.6 million tons 
per year

Ownership: Polaris 88%, 
Namgis First Nation 12%

* The Reserve Numbers have been verified by a Qualified
Person under NI 43-101. Please refer to the Company AIF
dated March 31, 2008. Does not include depletion from
operations in 2007 and 2008 (stated in short tons).
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World Class Quarries - Orca Quarry

During 2007, 1.40 million
tons of material was
produced at the Orca
Quarry, with 1.15 million
tons sold to customers
and 0.25 million tons held
as inventory. 

16
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Following the commencement of

commercial production in early 2007,

the Orca Quarry is the most recent

major quarry on the west coast of 

North America. Permitted to produce

6.6 million tons of high quality sand and

gravel per year, the Orca Quarry is

supplying urban markets along North

America’s west coast, and other Pacific

locations, and will do so for decades 

to come. 

The Orca Quarry is a state-of-the-art facility designed

and built for the long-term, cost-effective production of

high-quality construction aggregates. The extraction

method and process plant is designed to minimize

handling and reduce the energy consumption required

to extract and process the product. The quarry was

designed to be expandable, should customer demand

for its products increase beyond present capabilities.

The quarry is located near Port McNeill, on Vancouver

Island, British Columbia, and is adjacent to a deep and

navigable waterway. A two kilometre conveyor carries

the finished products to a high-speed quadrant beam

shiploader, designed to load ships and barges at a rate

of up to 5,000 tons per hour.

Production at the Orca Quarry began on February 20,

2007. During 2007, 1.40 million tons of material was

produced at the quarry, with 1.15 million tons sold to

customers and 0.25 million tons held as inventory. The

ramp up of operations is proceeding exceedingly well

and full production is expected to be achieved earlier

than forecast in the project’s feasibility study.

The Orca Quarry produces high-quality sand and

gravel that surpasses California (CALTRANS), U.S.

(ASTM) and Canadian (CSA) specifications for use in

concrete. It is one of only nine quarries selling material

into California that are pre-approved by CALTRANS as

a source of aggregates for reduced mineral admixture

concrete on Department projects. The quality of the

Orca Quarry’s products comes from volcanic origins

and from glacio-fluvial reworking at the end of the last

ice age. This natural processing has left hard, well-

rounded particles in the deposit, with virtually no silt or

clay and very little oversize material. The deposit’s ideal

distribution of size fractions means that very little

crushing is required and almost all the finished product

is sold uncrushed. These attributes are a significant

benefit to the ready-mix concrete industry because they

result in a very strong concrete that is easier to pump

and finish, and offer savings in cement content for

equivalent strength concrete.

The team at the Orca Quarry is a special group of men

and women made up of people from the local, north

island community and includes 26% women and 50%

First Nations’ workers. The number one priority at the

quarry is safety, as evidenced by the 10,883 hours of

operations and safety training the team received in

2007. As a consequence, there has not been a lost time

accident on the project since its inception.

The Orca Quarry is owned 88% by Polaris and 12% by

the Namgis First Nation.

Orca Quarry
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The massive size of the resources at the proposed
Eagle Rock Quarry, its ideal location near deep
tidewater, and the high quality of its granite
materials present a strong case to make Eagle
Rock the Company’s next quarry development.

Quarry

Plant

Stockpiles

Shiploader

One possible site layout for the proposed Eagle Rock Quarry
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Eagle Rock Quarry (Proposed)

Eagle Rock is a large, undeveloped resource of high-

quality granite ideally suited for road construction,

asphalt paving, and ready-mix concrete applications

which is permitted for the production of 6.6 million tons

per year. The quarry is road accessible and located

immediately adjacent to deep, navigable tidewater 15

kilometres south of the town of Port Alberni on

Vancouver Island. The Eagle Rock Quarry has the

potential to become one of the largest quarries of high-

quality crushed rock on the west coast of North America.

AMEC, a major international engineering firm, is

currently completing a feasibility study for the Eagle

Rock Quarry. The conclusion of the study is expected

in the third quarter of 2008.

The crushed granite from the Eagle Rock Quarry

meets all U.S. and California specifications for asphalt

paving and ready-mix concrete manufacturing. The

granite’s qualities were evaluated during bulk crushing

tests at Metso Minerals’ laboratory in Wisconsin, where

it was determined that due to their hardness and

shape, the Eagle Rock crushed rock particles lend

themselves ideally to asphalt paving applications. The

three qualities of the material that stand out are its

extremely low absorbency, its hardness and its

crushing characteristics. Low absorbency means that

the use of the Eagle Rock product minimizes the

bitumen content, a costly ingredient in asphalt paving.

The Eagle Rock Quarry is owned 70% by Polaris and

30% by local First Nations bands. The Hupacaseth and

Ucluelet First Nations each own 10%, and the remaining

10% is held in trust for the Tseshaht First Nation.



POLARIS MINERALS CORPORATION   2007 ANNUAL REPORT

Shipping

20

Polaris’ strategic shipping
arrangements ensure stable
costs over the long term and
are one of its key competitive
strengths. 
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SHIPPING

The long-distance shipment of low-value bulk products,

such as aggregates, requires cost-effective

transportation methods. Economies of scale are

imperative for success. Panamax-class rapid self-

unloading bulk carriers are the largest and most

efficient delivery option available to Polaris resulting in

low transportation costs, reduced use of energy per ton,

and overall reduction of harmful greenhouse gases as

the need for long distance truck deliveries is reduced.

Polaris has entered into two long-term shipping

agreements with CSL International Inc. (CSL), the

operator of the world’s largest fleet of rapid self-

unloading freighters. The first agreement, a 10-year

Contract of Affreightment for up to 5 million tons per

year of shipping capacity, was signed in 2005. The

second agreement is a 15-year Contract of

Affreightment for up to an additional 2.8 million tons

per annum of shipping capacity beginning in 2010.

This relationship with CSL provides Polaris with

distribution certainty at a time when world shipping

markets are highly volatile. Reliable and cost-effective

rapid self-discharge ships are a vital link in the

logistical chain, and Polaris is extremely pleased to

have CSL as its shipping partner.

draft of the ships so they can move into the shallow-

water terminals to discharge the remainder of their

cargo. At the terminals, the ships unload at a rate of up

to 5,000 tons per hour, thus minimizing waiting times

and associated port costs and enhancing the vessel’s

productivity.

Having access to ships that can carry full cargoes over

long distances and rapidly discharge minimizes the

delivered cost per ton and offers a significant

competitive advantage to Polaris. In addition, the

Company has long term supply contracts with two

customers in the San Francisco Bay area capable of

receiving large quantities of material to barges and

land-based terminals.

CSL’s Panamax vessels are loaded at the Orca Quarry

at a rate of approximately 5,000 tons per hour using a

high-speed quadrant beam shiploader. In less than 24

hours, up to 80,000 tons of sand and gravel can be

loaded, and the freighters are ready for the three day

trip to San Francisco where they arrive fully laden and

drawing about 14 metres of water depth.

San Francisco Bay, however, only has shallow-water

ports available for bulk carriers and these cannot

accommodate fully-laden Panamax-class aggregate

carriers. To overcome this challenge, the CSL vessels

anchor in a deepwater anchorage and are met by a

fleet of Shamrock barges. Utilizing their onboard

automatic self-unloading equipment, part of the cargo

is rapidly discharged into the barges. This lessens the

Shamrock takes delivery of sand and gravel from the
Orca Quarry into barges in San Francisco Bay.
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Polaris is seeking to expand its

access to port terminals capable of

receiving sand and gravel from the

Orca Quarry and, ultimately,

crushed stone from the proposed

Eagle Rock Quarry. This is one of

the Company’s greatest challenges

and its top priority. The Company

must compete for scarce land and

deepwater berths in highly

congested ports to open the

gateways into its target markets

necessary to grow its business. 

By securing additional long-term

port capacity in California, and

sales contracts with customers in

Hawaii and British Columbia, Polaris

is developing an invaluable

competitive advantage by securing

lasting access to large coastal

urban markets. 

Following the Strategic Alliance 

with Cemex, the Company has

embarked on an aggressive

evaluation program to acquire and

develop strategically located port

terminals along the west coast of

the United States.

Polaris made a quantum leap forward in 2007 when it
gained long-term access to several additional port
terminals in the San Francisco Bay.
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PORT TERMINALS

Aggregate receiving terminals are a critical element in

the logistical chain linking a coastal quarry to its

customers in maritime urban areas. Coastal receiving,

storage and distribution facilities become “virtual quarries”

in the heart of markets, where the ships meet the trucks

that distribute the construction aggregates to the end

users. Each time Polaris secures access to a terminal,

it establishes a base for further business growth.

Polaris made a quantum leap forward in 2007 when it

gained long-term access to several additional port

terminals in the San Francisco Bay, and also the

Vancouver and Hawaiian markets through sales

contracts. In September 2007, it entered into the

valuable Strategic Alliance with Cemex through which it

plans to aggressively expand its network of port

terminals.

Polaris operates in California through Eagle Rock

Aggregates Inc. (ERA), its 70%-owned port and

marketing subsidiary. ERA is the exclusive construction

aggregate provider at four port terminals, all of which

are located in the San Francisco Bay area (the Bay

area).

1. The Richmond Terminal, owned by ERA, serves the

northeastern Bay area.

2. The Landing Way Depot, located in Sonoma

County, is a major, barge-serviced receiving facility

on the Petaluma River that meets the northern bay

requirements of Shamrock Materials, a leading local

independent ready-mix concrete company.

3. Pier 92 is the barge-supplied site of a strategically

located ready-mix concrete plant owned by Cemex

near downtown San Francisco.

4. Cemex’s Redwood City Terminal serves the south-

ern portion of the Bay area.

The Richmond Terminal, located in the Port of

Richmond, San Francisco, is a state-of-the-art

aggregate receiving, storage and distribution facility.

Featuring high-speed overhead conveyors, the terminal

can receive product from Panamax freighters at their

maximum unloading rate of 5,000 tons per hour, thus

ensuring the ships spend a minimum amount of time

unloading their cargo. The terminal’s enclosed building

can store approximately 70,000 tons of sand and gravel

at full capacity. The terminal also features a truck-

loading facility that rapidly loads customers’ trucks with

sand and gravel for delivery to their ready-mix

operations. The construction of the Richmond Terminal

was completed in the fourth quarter of 2007 with a

substantial reduction in capital costs from the feasibility

study. In 2008, a second truck-loading bay will be

added to the terminal to enable two trucks to be loaded

simultaneously.

Cemex is also constructing a new aggregate receiving

terminal in Sacramento. This will be the fifth facility to

receive Polaris products in California when it is

completed in 2009.

In British Columbia, Orca Quarry products are shipped

by customer barges to two terminals located on the

Fraser River. Both terminals are operated by Burnco

Rock Products, one of western Canada’s leading

independent building materials companies.

In Hawaii, sand from the Orca Quarry is handled

through the Barbers Point Terminal, near Honolulu, on

the Island of Oahu.

Polaris majority owned Richmond Terminal is a state-
of-the-art aggregates receiving, storage and
distribution terminal located in San Francisco.
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In coming years, Polaris expects to significantly

increase the number of aggregate receiving terminals

that will receive Orca and eventually Eagle Rock

products. Initiatives in this respect are underway in

Southern California, Washington and Oregon as

follows:

Southern California

Long Beach

ERA has acquired an option to purchase a 12.4-acre

parcel of private property at Pier B in the Port of Long

Beach, which serves the Los Angeles metropolitan

area. This land is situated close to the 710 Freeway

and is expected to become a major receiving terminal

for sand and gravel from the Orca Quarry. The Pier B

site is also well suited to handle crushed granite from

the proposed Eagle Rock Quarry when production

commences there. Under the terms of the option

agreement, ERA is currently conducting due diligence

on this land parcel. ERA will evaluate the suitability of

the site to receive a full range of construction materials

and, possibly, a ready-mix concrete plant for supply into

the heart of this important market. The Pier B land,

however, is the site of a former industrial facility and the

costs associated with the reclamation of the site are being

carefully assessed through the due diligence period.

San Diego

ERA and Cemex are currently involved in discussions

with the Port of San Diego management to establish a

marine aggregate importation terminal within the Tenth

Avenue Marine Terminal. Cemex already operates a

marine supplied cement terminal within the Port and

has dedicated berthing agreements. ERA believes that

the three party interests are aligned and is hopeful that

this site could be developed in 2009.

Northern California

Redwood City

Polaris is currently supplying a Cemex controlled site in

the Port of Redwood City to serve markets to the south

of San Francisco Bay. Cemex and Polaris are also

working together to expand the existing operations at

the Redwood City Terminal which could also handle

products from the proposed Eagle Rock Quarry, when

and if developed, with a view to developing a major

construction materials park at the site. Prior to the

Alliance, the Company was in the process of permitting

another site, in the Port of Redwood City, for a marine

aggregates receiving terminal which the Company has

now substituted with a plan to jointly expand and

develop the existing Cemex Redwood City Terminal.

This terminal offers significantly greater benefits to the

Company in terms of multi-product storage, increased

sales volumes potential and cost effectiveness through

reduced capital requirements and shared infrastructure.

Sacramento

Cemex is currently developing an aggregates receiving,

storage and distribution terminal, including a ready-mix

concrete facility, in Sacramento that will be exclusively

supplied by Polaris. Panamax freighters, partially

unloaded in San Francisco Bay, will proceed up the

Sacramento River to supply the site with sand and

gravel from the Orca Quarry. Completion of the site is

expected in 2009.

Washington and Oregon

Cemex and Polaris are also investigating several

potential terminal sites within the Pacific Northwest

region.
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The Richmond Terminal’s
highly automated and
sophisticated design sets a
standard for other West
Coast ports seeking to build
environmentally compatible
aggregate importation
facilities.
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Growth through Exploration

Growing customer demand for sand and gravel from the Orca
Quarry has prompted Polaris to embark on an aggressive
exploration program to identify and secure additional
resources for the Orca Quarry. Successful exploration is, by
far, the most cost-effective way to grow and to extend the
longevity of our business. 
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Mineral Resources and Reserves

Resources
Tonnage (millions of tons)

Indicated &
Inferred Indicated Measured Measured

Deposit Resources1 Resources1 Resources1 Resources

East Cluxewe2

Stratum A (Coarse Aggregate) – 19.3 94.6 113.9
Stratum B (Fine Aggregate) – 7.5 26.4 33.9
Total – 26.8 121.0 147.8

Bear Creek3 37.5 24.8 16.2 41.0
West Cluxewe3 4.4 15.4 22.0 37.4

1. Mineral resources are not mineral reserves and do not demonstrate economic
viability.The mineral resources and reserves have been categorized in accordance
with the classifications defined by the Canadian Institute of Mining, Metallurgy and
Petroleum (CIM).

2. The estimates with respect to the East Cluxewe Deposit are taken from the Orca
AMEC report and do not take into consideration depletion due to production at the
Orca Quarry in 2007 and 2008.

3. A Qualified Person has verified the data relating to this deposit.

Reserves
Tonnage (millions of tons)

Proven &
Probable Proven Probable

Deposit Reserves Reserves1 Reserves2

East Cluxewe
Stratum A (Coarse Aggregate) 18.3 85.9 104.2
Stratum B (Fine Aggregate) 7.2 22.6 29.8
Total 25.5 108.5 134.0

1. The mineral reserves have been categorized in accordance with the classifications
defined by CIM. Mineral reserves are a subset of the mineral resource numbers.
The two quantities cannot be added together or combined in any way.

2. The estimates with respect to the East Cluxewe Deposit are taken from the Orca
AMEC report and do not take into consideration depletion due to production at the
Orca Quarry in 2007 and 2008.
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GROWTH THROUGH EXPLORATION 

Anticipating the need to meet continuing growth in

customer demand for Orca Quarry products in the near

and long term, Polaris has initiated a major exploration

program. This will be the most extensive drilling

program the company has conducted in the region.

With success, the Company is expected to be able to

further extend the already long life of the quarry or to

support an increase in the production rate to well

above the original permitted output of 6.6 million tons

per annum, subject to additional permitting. Previous

exploration work in the area included the surveying of

28 kilometres of high resolution geophysical resistivity

lines and the drilling of 10 sampling boreholes. Work in

2008 will build on the previous findings with the

objective of significantly increasing the resource

inventory at Orca through an additional 33 kilometres

of resistivity surveys and 69 sampling boreholes.

The exploration targets will also be the subject of

extensive environmental and traditional-use scoping

studies to evaluate mine permitting risks and

opportunities.

Geology
After global warming triggered the retreat of glaciation

from Vancouver Island approximately 12,000 years ago,

the north tip of the island received large volumes of

glacial meltwater in debris-laden streams discharging

into Broughton Strait from glaciers to the south of

Nimpkish Lake and Port McNeill. Sand and gravel

deposits in the Port McNeill area were formed in large

flat-topped deltas at sea level. With the removal of

glaciers from the area, the land rebounded as much as

100 metres causing the dissection of the deltaic

deposits by post-glacial and present-day streams, such

as the Cluxewe and Nimpkish Rivers.

Bear Creek Deposit
Work carried out in 2004 identified an Indicated and

Measured Resource of 41.0 million tons in an area

immediately adjacent to the East Cluxewe deposit

which can be connected to the Orca Quarry by

extension of the existing field conveyor system. The

work planned for 2008 covers an area of nine square

kilometres centered on Bear Creek (Mills Creek) as

determined by the earlier investigations which

suggested a continuity of deposit similar to the East

Cluxewe reserves.

West Cluxewe Deposit
The West Cluxewe deposit is located within the

Company’s leasehold area, and covers slightly less

than one square kilometer, immediately adjacent to the

East Cluxewe (Orca Quarry) deposit on the west side

of the Cluxewe River. Exploration in 2004 consisted of

geological mapping, seismic surveying, and limited

drilling which defined 37.4 million tons of Indicated and

Measured Resources. Additional drilling over the full

leasehold area is planned in 2008.

Cougar Deposit
Polaris has obtained a License of Occupation for the

Cougar deposit covering an area of 12 square kilometres

together with a significant length of the adjacent

shoreline in Rupert Inlet. This geological target area is

located approximately 18 kilometers west of the Orca

Quarry. Exploration work was initiated in the summer of

2007 and included seven kilometers of high-resolution

resistivity surveys and geological mapping and

sampling. Limited drilling is planned in 2008.

Other Exploration
Polaris believes that other deposits of sand and gravel

exist in the region, and has an active exploration program

planned for 2008, including geophysical surveys and

backhoe trenching, to investigate these targets.
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Sustainability: Delivering uncompromising value for
our shareholders, employees, contractors,
customers, business partners and host communities. 

We are fostering a culture 
of caring for team members,
for the environment, and for
the communities in which 
we operate. 
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SUSTAINABILITY

Building a successful and sustainable

business involves maximizing value for

all our stakeholders and shareholders.

Our Goal:
To be a catalyst for sustainable development through

the successful integration of economic, environmental

and community objectives.

Our Commitment:
Wherever we operate, we will develop, implement and

maintain management systems for sustainable

development that drive continual improvement in order

to ensure that we:

• Do not compromise our safety values, and seek

ways to promote and improve the health of our

workforce and the community.

• Identify, assess and manage risks to employees,

contractors, the environment and our host communities.

• Uphold ethical business practice.s

• Understand, promote and uphold fundamental

human rights within our sphere of influence, respect-

ing the traditional rights of indigenous peoples and

valuing cultural heritage.

• Encourage a diverse workforce and provide a work

environment in which everyone is treated fairly and

with respect, so that they can realize their full potential.

• Engage regularly, openly and honestly with people

affected by our operations, and take their views and

concerns into account in our decision-making.

• Enhance economic benefits from our operations

that foster the sustainable development of our host

communities.

Improving Workplace Safety,
Productivity and Community Self-
empowerment
We are committed to developing a diverse workforce

and to providing a workplace in which everyone is

treated fairly, with respect, and where all have the

opportunity to realize their full potential and contribute

to the achievement of our objectives.

The Orca Quarry team consists of 46 people, all of

which are northern Vancouver Island residents. 50%

are members of local first nation communities and 26%

percent are female.

During 2007, we invested 10,883 hours of training in

our team members, and the benefits are clearly

showing. Our team is becoming highly proficient and

cross-trained on a variety of quarry functions, a factor

which is improving our flexibility and efficiency at the

quarry. Our largest training focus relates to safety. This

is very valuable to our neighboring communities. For

example, our team members train in mine rescue

safety, and are on-call to assist other Northern

Vancouver Island industries and communities in case

of emergency. Our “safety first” approach is paying off

by protecting our workers, by creating a disciplined and

skilled culture of safety, and by allowing them to become

increasingly more valuable community members. In

fact, we have not had a lost time accident since we

initiated construction of the quarry, a remarkable

achievement recognized when we were awarded the

prestigious Stuart O’Brien safety award in 2007.

Staying safe requires vigilance, effort and investment,

and we are committed to ensuring that our quarry

remains a safe work site, and that our team members

return safely home to their families each day. As a

result, the spirit and morale among our employees is

very high, and our productivity is second to none.

We also recognize that we have a role to play in

supporting the development of our host communities

beyond the lifetime of our operations. One way we can

do this is by preferentially using local suppliers

wherever possible, and by helping to build their

capacity and business potential. Indeed, to date, we

have managed to generate economic spin-off benefits

amounting to tens of millions of dollars across

Vancouver Island and British Columbia, and we

continuously strive to maximize these benefits.
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Protecting the Environment 
for Future Generations

Our philosophy is to continuously and pragmatically

endeavour to minimize our environmental footprint, in

order to ensure that we are a net positive contributor to

the health of our planet. In designing the Orca Quarry

we have maximized the recovery of water by recycling

and are using biodegradable vegetable oil lubricants

wherever possible, especially in close proximity to the

foreshore. Other benefits happen as an indirect result

of our business strategy. For instance, one remarkable

and somewhat unexpected effect of our exports of

sand and gravel to California is that the highly efficient

movement of these materials by sea to our coastal

markets consumes far less energy per ton compared to

many alternative inland quarries. Over time, this will

result in a reduction of many millions of truck miles per

year on California roads. As older quarries in or close

to urban areas are depleted of reserves, and as they

need to be replaced by more distant inland quarries,

the benefits of using our material will only improve. The

resulting reduction in emissions and traffic congestion

will help to make the air in our customers’ cities more

breathable and their communities more livable.

The Orca Quarry is a model of environmentally

sustainable development and was developed using

industry-leading principles. The buffers between the

active site and the salmon-bearing Cluxewe River were

voluntarily made much larger than required by

regulations, ensuring that the project does not effect

this valuable aquatic environment. The methods

employed to construct our shiploader in a sensitive

marine ecosystem, and its simple and clean design

have been hailed as industry models and become a

training ground for government and industry. Finally,

with a view to returning the site to its natural state as

rapidly as possible and to minimizing the active project

footprint, we have committed ourselves to a rapid and

progressive reclamation program.

We take our social and environmental obligations very

seriously.

A barge of construction aggregate from the Orca Quarry
destined for Burnco Rock Products in Vancouver.
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Our team members train in mine rescue safety, and
are on-call to assist other Northern Vancouver Island
industries and communities in case of emergency.
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OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS
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The following discussion and analysis of the financial condition and operations of Polaris
Minerals Corporation (the “Company”) has been prepared by management as of March 31,
2008, and should be read in conjunction with the Company’s audited consolidated financial
statements for the year ended December 31, 2007, which have been prepared in
accordance with Canadian generally accepted accounting principles.

Effective January 1, 2007, the Company changed its reporting currency from Canadian
dollars to the U.S. dollar (USD). The change in reporting currency is to better reflect the
Company’s business activities and to improve investors’ ability to compare the Company’s
financial results with other publicly traded businesses in the industry. The Company will
conduct most of its sales and shipping contracts in USD. Prior to January 1, 2007, the
Company reported its annual and quarterly consolidated balance sheets and the related
consolidated statements of operations and cash flows in the Canadian dollar (CAD). In
making this change in reporting currency, the Company followed the recommendations of
the Emerging Issues Committee (EIC) of the Canadian Institute of Chartered Accountants
(CICA), set out in EIC-130, Translation Method when the Reporting Currency Differs from
the Measurement Currency or there is a Change in the Reporting Currency.

Based on EIC-130, the financial statements for all years and periods presented have been
translated into the new reporting currency using the current rate method. Under this
method, the statement of operations and cash flow statement items for each year and
period have been translated into the reporting currency using the average exchange rates
prevailing during each reporting period.All assets and liabilities have been translated using
the exchange rate prevailing at the consolidated balance sheet dates. Shareholders’ equity
transactions since January 1, 2006 have been translated using the rates of exchange in
effect as of the dates of the various capital transactions, while shareholders’ equity
balances on January 1, 2006 have been translated at the exchange rate on that date. All
resulting exchange differences arising from the translation are included as a separate
component of other comprehensive income.All comparative financial information has been
restated to reflect the Company’s results as if they had been historically reported in U.S.
Dollars. The Company’s unit of weight is the U.S. Short Ton (“ton”) containing 2,000
pounds.

OVERVIEW

2007 was the milestone year for the Company which saw the first phase of its growth into
an operating company successfully achieved when the Orca Sand and Gravel Quarry
(“the Orca Quarry”) commenced production and shipping to customers in California, Hawaii
and Vancouver, BC. The Orca Quarry was constructed to budget, within one year, and
quickly established itself as a reliable supplier of high quality sand and gravel, primarily for
use in the production of concrete which in turn is used in a number of infrastructure and
building projects. Quarries located on deep, navigable tidewater, long term shipping
contracts and secured sales contracts together with receiving terminal access are the
essential components of the logistical chain the Company has built.

During the year the Company also joined forces with one of the largest construction
materials companies in the world, Cemex, Inc. under an agreement which brought
immediate sales demand for sand and gravel and provides for the joint development of
additional receiving terminals on the west coast of North America. This agreement is
considered to be a strong validation of the Company’s strategy.

During the fourth quarter of 2007 the Company opened its own aggregate receiving and
distribution terminal in Richmond, California, a city on the east of San Francisco Bay. This
environmentally sensitive, enclosed facility represents a state of the art investment and has
proven an excellent flagship operation for promoting the Company’s capabilities.

Quarries and Terminals
The first key ingredient in the Company’s logistical chain is quarries. The Orca Quarry,
west of the town of Port McNeill, British Columbia, has over 130 million tons of reserves of
sand and gravel and is permitted and capable of producing 6.6 million tons of aggregate
a year. The Orca Quarry is expected to meet the needs of west coast ready-mix concrete
producers that require a long term supply of high quality construction aggregate for
decades to come. Sales of construction aggregate commenced from the Orca Quarry at
the end of March 2007.

The Company believes that it will be possible to further extend the life and scale of the
Orca Quarry and has commenced a program of exploration in the surrounding area,
including further evaluation of the Company’s Cougar, Bear Creek and West Cluxewe
deposits over which the Company has certain rights, with the objective of identifying
additional sand and gravel resources.

The Company also owns the rights to develop the Eagle Rock Quarry Project, a very large
granite resource located on deep tidewater alongside the Alberni Inlet near Port Alberni,
British Columbia. The Eagle Rock Quarry has the necessary mine permit and the

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 
OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS
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Company is actively seeking market outlets which would support the development of the
quarry to produce crushed rock construction aggregate products. Work has begun to
update and complete the previous partially completed feasibility study which is expected
to be concluded by the third quarter of 2008. The first stage of this work was the shipment
of a bulk sample of several tons of granite from this quarry site to a pilot crushing plant in
the U.S. where extensive tests provided detailed data for process plant design and, most
importantly, bulk finished aggregate samples for distribution to those potential customers
who have expressed a serious interest in supplies from this quarry. Eagle Rock Quarry
products are also expected be shipped in bulk ocean-going carriers to coastal urban
markets along the west coast of North America and Hawaii. This high quality aggregate is
anticipated to be ideal for asphalt construction with significant finished product cost benefits
and over time is expected to be a significant source of coarse aggregate for use in concrete
when it will complement the Orca Quarry which produces a high proportion of fine
aggregate.

Terminal access, whether through owned and operated terminals or third party terminals,
is another key component in the logistical chain. The construction on the Company’s
Richmond Terminal (the “Terminal”) in the Port of Richmond in San Francisco Bay, held
under a long-term lease with Levin Enterprises, Inc., was completed in the fourth quarter
of 2007. The Terminal received the first shipment of sand and gravel inventory on October
9th which was used for the commissioning of the Terminal through the distribution of
aggregate to local customers and effective January 1, 2008 the Terminal commenced
commercial operations. The Terminal is a receiving, storage and distribution facility for
construction aggregate having a permitted annual throughput capacity of 1.5 million tons.

Subsequent to December 31, 2007, the Company entered into a purchase and sale
agreement to acquire a 12.4 acre site at Pier B in the Port of Long Beach, California for
$23.5 million dollars.This site would initially accommodate a sand and gravel terminal with
expansion capabilities for a crushed rock terminal on commencement of production at the
Eagle Rock Quarry. The site may also provide the opportunity for an on-site ready-mix
concrete plant, effectively creating a construction materials park. The Company placed a
$1 million deposit on the land and has 120 days in which to complete its due diligence
before closing. If the Company is not satisfied with the results of the due diligence, the
Company may terminate the agreement with full refund of the deposit plus interest.

In the fourth quarter of 2007, the Company agreed with Cemex Inc. to jointly re-develop
Cemex’s existing marine aggregate receiving terminal in the Port of Redwood City, an
extensive facility which offers the potential for both sand and gravel and granite importation
and storage together with the production of value added products. As a consequence of
gaining access to this exceptional site (see Customer’s below) the Company decided not

to proceed with its alternate site in the Port of Redwood City and terminated all negotiations
and permitting activity, writing off $347,000 in associated costs. The joint re-development
is expected to reduce the Company’s capital requirements and operating costs.

Markets
The Company’s target markets are major urban centers along the West Coast of North
America where local production of construction aggregate is rapidly diminishing as
operating quarries are depleted and new resources become more difficult to permit. Longer
and more costly overland trucking to consumers to meet the supply shortfall is creating a
market opportunity for the Company to competitively ship high quality construction
aggregate to those markets in large ocean-going bulk carriers or tugs and barges.
Currently, the Company is selling sand and gravel into three distinct markets: San
Francisco, Hawaii and Vancouver.

The California market, while enjoying strong price increases over the last several years due
to dwindling supply and strong demand, particularly in the residential construction market,
experienced a reduction in demand in 2007 due to the severe downturn in the housing
market. This downturn, which is continuing in 2008, has been somewhat cushioned by
commercial construction and the onset of large infrastructure projects. Historically, public
spending and private investment are counter-cyclical; however, the significant decline in
private spending is expected to outpace the ramp-up of large infrastructure projects thus
creating a time lag in the recovery of demand for aggregate. Pricing in the urban California
markets remains stable, reflecting the current downturn although ongoing supply concerns
and the difficulty and high cost associated with securing and permitting new reserves near
urban areas is underpinning pricing strategies. Despite the current market environment, the
Company expects to increase its sales into the California market due to the quality of its
material and the strength of the ongoing infrastructure building and renewal program.

The combination of dwindling supply and strong demand for construction aggregate in
Hawaii and Vancouver continues to make these two markets favourable for the Company’s
products.

The Hawaiian market, at this time, is largely insulated from the downturn in residential
construction being experienced in the United States due to a strong demand for private
construction to accommodate the buoyant tourism industry. On going military construction
expenditure coupled with large infrastructure projects, including a proposed new light rapid
transit system, are also anticipated to maintain strong demand for construction aggregate,
The dwindling supply of sand and gravel and the increasing demand in this market should
enable the Company to continue to supply and grow marine imported aggregate into
Hawaii.
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The building market in Vancouver remains very strong, driven by both public and private
spending. Several large infrastructure projects are under construction as the city prepares
to host the Olympic Games in 2010 and residential high rise construction continues at a
brisk pace due to a strong economy and an increase in residents to the city. Pressure on
local supply has been further exacerbated by the closure of a large coastal quarry on the
southern tip of Vancouver Island which had previously shipped aggregate to the mainland.
These factors are all contributing to a strong demand for sand and gravel in Vancouver and
the Company expects to increase sales to its Vancouver customer in 2008 thus building on
the excellent progress made since March 2007.

The Company will continue to evaluate and secure new markets for its construction
aggregate and is currently seeking new opportunities in Washington and Oregon States in
conjunction with Cemex.

Shipping
The Company is currently shipping its products from Vancouver Island, British Columbia,
Canada to major urban markets including San Francisco Bay, Vancouver and Hawaii.

Customers in San Francisco Bay are serviced using self-unloading Panamax vessels
provided by CSL International Inc. (“CSL”) under the terms of the Company’s initial ten
year shipping contract. On arrival in the Bay, these vessels are partially unloaded while at
anchor (“lightered”) into barges provided by a major customer under the terms of a twenty
year aggregate supply agreement or onto a barge operated on behalf of Cemex by an
independent towing contractor. After lightering, the balance of the cargo may be unloaded
at an existing terminal operated by Cemex at Redwood City or at the Company’s own
receiving, storage and distribution facility in Richmond, California.This arrangement offers
the most economical shipping solution by utilizing fully loaded Panamax vessels from
Vancouver Island to San Francisco Bay prior to lightering.

The logistics associated with the distribution of large quantities of aggregate by ocean-
going vessel are complex and during this start-up operating period the Company
experienced somewhat higher than projected shipping and port costs.This was a result of
the relatively low number of vessel movements throughout the start-up period and the
travel time required for pilots and berthing tugs. The Company intends to minimize the
cost of tugs through the provision of a dedicated local berthing tug and expects to reduce
pilot costs as more experience is gained with the new ship berth at Port McNeill coupled
with the impact of increasing numbers of vessels loaded. The majority of individual
shipments to San Francisco Bay carried maximum cargoes; however to ensure a
continuous supply to the Company’s original customer, and prior to the completion of

construction at the Richmond Terminal, two ship loads in this start-up phase sailed partially
loaded, resulting in significantly higher shipping costs per ton. By entering into the Strategic
Alliance with Cemex and with the commencement of operations at the Richmond Terminal,
shipping capacity to San Francisco Bay is expected to be optimized in the future as the
complex logistics of this enterprise become easier and more flexible with increasing port
and barge options.

The Company has entered into a second shipping contract for 2.8 million tons per annum
with CSL commencing in the last quarter of 2010, which provides the shipping capacity
necessary to serve anticipated future terminals in the Ports of Long Beach and San Diego.

The Lower Mainland of BC is supplied with sand and gravel on a regular basis through
barge shipments. These barges are provided by the customer and unloaded at two
terminals located on the Fraser River. Sales to Hawaii are made from the Orca Quarry
where materials are loaded into CSL self-discharging vessels supplied by the Company’s
Hawaiian customers.

Customers
The Company’s customer base has grown throughout the year to include customers in
California, Hawaii and Vancouver. A key growth strategy for the Company during the year
was entering into a Strategic Alliance (the “Alliance”) with Cemex, Inc. (“Cemex”). In joining
forces with Cemex, one of the largest construction materials companies in the world, the
Company has gained access to additional marine terminals which are pivotal in the
Company’s ambition to become a major supplier of construction aggregate on the west
coast of North America.The Alliance, which covers Washington, Oregon and California, is
governed by several agreements: a Strategic Alliance Agreement; a Supply and Distribution
Agreement in respect of Northern California (except those four counties which are subject
to an existing distribution agreement); Joint Cooperation and Development Agreements
in respect of certain prospective new terminal locations and; a Standstill Agreement.

The ten year Strategic Alliance agreement sets out exclusivity between the Company and
Cemex for the purchase and distribution of marine supplied construction aggregate, initially
sand and gravel and ultimately including crushed rock, on the west coast of the United
States along with an understanding for the development of new terminals and associated
quarry development related to those products. An Alliance Committee, comprised of two
members from each company, supervises the ongoing operations of the Alliance. The
agreement has an option to be extended for additional ten year terms upon mutual
agreement between the parties.
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A twenty year Supply and Distribution Agreement for marine transported construction
aggregate provides for Cemex to be the exclusive marketer of the Company’s construction
aggregate and for the Company to be the exclusive supplier to Cemex for its own internal
use and for sales to third parties in Northern California, excluding the counties of Marin,
Sonoma, Mendocino and Napa governed by the Company’s first purchase and supply
agreement.This supply and distribution agreement provides for minimum annual volumes
which the Company must supply and Cemex must purchase and an annually adjusted
market price mechanism. If Cemex fails to purchase or the Company fails to supply the
minimum annual tons, the party which fails to meet the commitment is required to pay a per
ton fee for the shortfall, after certain carry-forward provisions.This agreement automatically
renews for two, ten year periods, subject to not exceeding the life of the Orca Quarry and
a five year termination notice.

The ten year Joint Cooperation and Development Agreements provide a mechanism
through which the Company and Cemex will work together to pursue and develop new
construction aggregate marine receiving terminals in Washington, Oregon and California
(except for the counties of Marin, Sonoma, Mendocino and Napa). A Development
Committee, comprised of two members from each company, will use best efforts to identify
terminal opportunities that are acceptable to both companies. Each new terminal
development will be entered into contemporaneously with a supply and distribution
agreement which sets out the exclusive market area to be served by that terminal. In the
event that either party decides not to pursue a proposed terminal development, the
proposing party is free to pursue the development of that terminal unencumbered, but
with the loss of exclusivity for supply or distribution, as the case may be, related to the area
served by that terminal.The agreement has an option to be extended for additional ten year
terms upon mutual agreement by the Company and Cemex.

Entering into the Alliance underpins the Company’s growth aspirations and is expected to
provide for accelerated progress towards the permitted production of 6.6 million tons per
year from the Orca Quarry.

Sales and Seasonality 
The level of sales achieved during the first nine months of operations is very encouraging
and in line with the Company’s expectations for the commencement and build up of sales.
The mix of long-term contracted sales and shorter term supply agreements provides
flexibility and will enable the Company to realize the benefit of increasing prices brought
about by the depletion of indigenous resources in the target market areas. New resources
are increasingly difficult to permit in all target markets and in the long term the Company
believes that the growing supply deficits will have to be met by increasingly longer and
more expensive overland transportation options as well as by marine transportation.

Although the Company’s sand and gravel quarry operates year-round, seasonal changes
and other weather related conditions can have an impact on production volumes and
demand for the Company’s products. As a consequence, the Company’s financial results
for any individual quarter are not necessarily indicative of results to be expected for that
year. Sales and earnings are typically sensitive to regional and local weather and market
conditions and, in particular, to cyclical swings in construction spending. Typically, the
highest sales and earnings will be achieved in the third quarter of any year and the lowest
realized in the first quarter.

SELECTED ANNUAL INFORMATION

The following table sets out selected consolidated financial information for the Company
prepared in accordance with Canadian generally accepted accounting principles. The
Company’s reporting currency is U.S. dollars.This information has been summarized from
the Company’s audited consolidated financial statements for the fiscal years ended
December 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005. This selected consolidated financial information
should only be read in conjunction with the Company’s consolidated financial statements.

Year Ended December 31,

2007 2006 2005
$ $ $

Revenue 15,467 Nil Nil
Interest income 1,652 1,759 69
Loss for the year (18,380) (3,333) (2,845)
Basic and diluted loss per share (0.52) (0.11) (0.22)
Cash and cash equivalents 15,234 42,397 997
Net working capital 17,164 32,559 162
Total assets 143,993 118,112 9,506
Total long term liabilities 6,501 37,056 1,130
Dividends declared Nil Nil Nil
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RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

During the year ended December 31, 2007, the Company incurred a loss of $18.4 million
($0.52 per share) compared to a loss of $3.3 million ($0.11 per share) in the comparative
year. The loss from operations for the year, excluding stock-based compensation, was
virtually unchanged at $4.3 million compared with a loss of $4.4 million in the prior year.
The increased loss for the year is mainly attributable to $15.5 million of non-cash items as
follows: an increase of $7.4 million in stock based compensation; $1.5 million in realized
foreign exchange losses resulting from the effect of the strengthening of the Canadian
dollar on the Company’s U.S. dollar cash and cash equivalents; a $3.4 million loss relating
to the change in fair value of the long term debt; a $2.0 million provision on the Company’s
asset backed commercial paper and a $0.3 million write down of property, plant and
equipment. The $0.8 million increase in G&A expense as a result of the growth of the
Company and is offset by a gross margin of $1.0 million in the year ended December 31,
2007. The positive contribution from the Orca Quarry in only its first nine months of
operation is extremely encouraging.

The Company commenced sales of sand and gravel in the last week of the first quarter.
Sales in the year ended December 31, 2007 were $15.5 million from a total sales volume
of sand and gravel of 1,150,604 tons. At the end of the year the Company had a total of
249,000 tons of aggregate products in inventory. The Company achieved a gross margin
of $1.0 million ($0.90 per ton) for the year ended December 31, 2007.The gross margin for
the fourth quarter and the year ended December 31, 2007 declined from the second and
third quarters principally due to increased quarry costs per ton as the Company prepared
to ramp-up production for 2008, and an inevitable slow down in production in quarter four
due to the seasonality of the business, and the effect of the weakening U.S. dollar on
Canadian dollar denominated costs. The success of the production increase measures
has been clearly demonstrated in the first quarter of 2008 when Orca Quarry produced just
over 750,000 tons in sharp contrast to only 350,000 tons in the fourth quarter of 2007 with
a consequent reduction in fixed costs per ton in 2008.

The shipping of products in Panamax size vessels requires complex logistics which will
become easier to manage as sales, and the number of receiving terminals serviced, both
increase. In order to meet sales contracts during the year, two Panamax vessels were
dispatched lightly loaded with a consequent deadfreight penalty of $356,000. Unrecovered
bunker fuel costs also had an adverse impact in the fourth quarter due to the dramatic
increase in bunker fuel prices which cost the Company an additional $702,000. These
additional bunker fuel costs are recovered in the year following the year in which they were
incurred due to the impact of the timing of the Company’s sales contracts and this lag

particularly impacted the fourth quarter. The cost of ship berthing operations at the Orca
Quarry cost an additional $522,000 above the contracted rate with our shippers principally
due to tug and pilotage costs.The pilots are now beginning to relax some of the restrictions
at the berth and the Company is tackling the tug cost issue through the provision of a
new, locally based, berthing tug which should come into service in the third quarter of
2008.These initiatives, combined with the beneficial effect of an increasing number of ship
loadings, will gradually reduce the penalty of increased port costs.These factors combined
to increase the shipping cost per ton, particularly during the fourth quarter.

Operating activities, taking into account non-cash items and non-cash working capital,
used cash of $3.1 million for the year compared to $4.8 million in the comparative 2006
period.

Expenses of $13.6 million were charged to operations during the year, compared to
expenses of $5.2 million in the comparative 2006 period.

• General and administrative costs in the year increased to $4.5 million from $3.8 million
in the 2006 period. Accounting for this increase is increased professional fees and
travel as a result of the eleven month negotiations with Cemex and increases in
general office costs and salaries due to the growth of the Company.

• Marketing costs in the year increased to $0.6 million from $0.4 million in the 2006
period. The increase is attributable to a bonus paid in accordance with a consultancy
contract as certain milestones were achieved.

• An expense of $8.2 million was recorded in the year for stock-based compensation
compared with $0.8 million in the comparative 2006 year. In the year ended December
31, 2007, $0.06 million in stock based compensation was capitalized to property, plant
& equipment compared with $0.1 million in the corresponding 2006 period.

The majority of the Company’s sales, and all shipping costs, are denominated in U.S.
dollars. With the rising Canadian dollar throughout the year, the translated costs of
producing the product at the Orca Quarry were adversely impacted by the currency
fluctuations. Sales into Vancouver, BC, which are denominated in Canadian Dollars, offset
a portion of the cash costs of production at the Orca Quarry and provided a natural hedge
to the Company.

Costs at the Orca Quarry are incurred in Canadian dollars and as such are susceptible to
fluctuations in foreign exchange rates upon reporting.Additionally, in the ramp-up phase of
production quarry costs per ton can fluctuate significantly with the level of production.
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Inventory is calculated on a yearly rolling average and increased costs per ton in any
quarter will be reflected in this rolling average and applied against all tons sold in the year
to date period which can create significant fluctuations on a quarter to quarter basis.

SUMMARY OF QUARTERLY RESULTS

The selected financial information set out below is based on and derived from the unaudited consolidated financial statements of the Company for each of the quarters listed:

(in 000’s) 2007 2006

Dec 31 Sept 30 June 30 March 31 Dec 31 Sept. 30 June 30 March 31
$ $ $ $ $ $ $ $

Revenue 5,553 5,466 4,398 50 Nil Nil Nil Nil
Interest income 371 303 486 492 92 867 617 182
Loss for the quarter (10,931) (1,929) (1,212) (4,308) (1,349) (8) (83) (1,893)
Basic and diluted loss per share (0.30) (0.05) (0.03) (0.14) (0.04) (0.00) (0.01) (0.06)

The Company now reports comprehensive income having adopted the new accounting
standards for financial instruments which were effective for the Company on January 1,
2007. The most significant component of other comprehensive loss was the currency
translation adjustments.

LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES

At December 31, 2007, the Company had working capital of $17.2 million, including cash
and cash equivalents of $15.2 million compared to working capital of $32.6 million and
cash of $42.4 million at December 31, 2006.The Company has sufficient capital resources
to fund operations through to sustainable positive net cash flows but may need additional
financing in the event that current efforts to secure additional terminals or the development
of Eagle Rock Quarry are successful.

During the year ended December 31, 2007, the Company issued 6,900,000 common
shares at $7.67 (CDN$9.00) per share for gross proceeds of $52.9 million (CDN$62.1
million) through a bought deal equity financing. A cash commission equal to 5.0% of the
gross proceeds was paid to the underwriters. The Company expects that the remaining
funds from the bought deal will finance the construction of the Richmond Terminal, and will
fund operations through to sustainable positive net cash flows.

The Company closed its IPO and issued 16,628,185 common shares during the year
ended December 31, 2006 for net proceeds of $63.6 million (CDN$73.9 million). At the
same time as the IPO, the Company closed a $31 million debt facility which the Company
fully drew down in the year ended December 31, 2006. The Company repaid the
outstanding debt facility of $32.3 million, including accrued interest, on April 16, 2007 from
the proceeds of the equity issue.

Throughout the year ended December 31, 2007, 775,545 stock options were exercised
with gross proceeds to the Company of $1.5 million.

In connection with the Company’s first sale of construction aggregate to California, the
Company issued 2,153,846 warrants in accordance with the terms of a previous long term
debt agreement. Each warrant is exercisable into one common share at $4.84 (CDN $4.80)
per share until November 30, 2010. Effective January 1, 2007, the Company recognized the
fair value of these warrants of $3.5 million in the financial statements with a corresponding
reduction in the amount of the debt.As at December 31, 2007, no warrants were exercised.

The Company granted 1.4 million stock options with an exercise price of $13.77
(CND$13.75) per share, exercisable until October 4, 2017 during the year ended 
December 31, 2007.

During the year ended December 31, 2006, the Company entered into four five-year leases
for heavy mining equipment for the Orca Quarry, terminating on October 28, 2011, at fixed
annual interest rates of 7.0% and 7.05%. As at December 31, 2007, the total minimum
lease payments remaining were $3.8 million.

During the year ended December 31, 2007 the Company loaned $5.5 million to a third
party for the purchase of certain assets required to facilitate its ability to deliver increased
tonnage into the San Francisco Bay area. The loan bears interest of 5.5% per annum
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payable monthly and with the principal balance due in 2027. The Company has security
over various assets of the third party. The loan is accounted for under the amortized cost
method.

The Company has an investment in third party asset backed commercial paper (“ABCP”)
with a par value of $5.9 million. At the date the Company acquired the ABCP it was rated
R1 (High) by Dominion Bond Rating Services (“DBRS”), the highest credit rating issued for
commercial paper. During August, 2007 the ABCP market experienced liquidity issues
and as a result of these market conditions the Company’s ABCP did not settle as it matured
on August 17, 2007. There has been no active trading of the ABCP since mid-August 2007
and no market quotations are currently available. A group representing banks, asset
providers and major investors (the “Montreal Group”) has reached an agreement in
principle to restructure the ABCP market. This restructuring will replace the existing short-
term investments with longer term notes with a maturity of 7 years, on average. These
notes will be issued as Senior and Subordinated Notes and a margin facility will be in
place for those investors who do not wish to self finance margin calls. The Company
believes the majority of its ABCP will be eligible for restructuring.

There is a significant amount of uncertainty in estimating the amount and timing of cash
flows associated with the ABCP. At December 31, 2007, the Company has made a fair
value determination of this investment using a probability weighted valuation technique
which considers the time value of money and the associated credit risk. The Company
used the following assumptions in its valuation based on limited available information: the
majority of the trust is a going concern, the Senior Notes will be AAA rated, and the Notes
will be interest bearing but interest received will be net of the restructuring costs and the
standby fees on the margin facility. The credit risk was estimated by management and
these estimates are based on observable market prices or rates. Changes in the
assumptions may have an effect on the fair market value of this investment. In addition,
there is no certainty regarding the eventual recover of this investment and consequently the
timing and amount of any future cash flows may vary materially from current estimates.

The fair value write-down of this investment was $2.0 million for the year ended December
31, 2007. The fair value write-down could range from $1.2 million to $3.3 million based on
alternative reasonable assumptions.

This investment has been classified as available-for-sale on initial recognition and was
carried at fair value in cash and cash equivalents. To reflect the lack of liquidity in the
ABCP market and the uncertainty surrounding the timing of cash flows, the investment has
been reclassified as long term.

The Company expended $39.7 million on property, plant and equipment in the year ended
December 31, 2007 compared with $49.8 million in the year ended December 31, 2006.
The majority of 2007 expenditures relate to the construction of the Richmond Terminal
while the 2006 expenditures relate to the construction of the Orca Quarry. Operations
commenced at the Orca Quarry on February 20, 2007 and January 1, 2008 at the
Richmond Terminal with capitalization of project costs diminishing rapidly thereafter,
respectively. The majority of the expenditures for the Orca Quarry were incurred prior to
December 31, 2006 in accordance with budgeted expenditures.

As at December 31, 2007, the Company’s obligations under operating leases and
aggregate throughput commitments are outlined in the following table:

(‘000) Payments Due by Period

Less than 2-3 4-5 After 5
Total one year years years years

Operating leases $19,064 $812 $1,886 $1,947 $13,369

On commencement of the marine contract on July 18, 2007, the Company is committed to
ship the following tonnage.

Tons

First contract year 1,540,000
Second contract year 2,530,000
Third contract year 3,520,000
Fourth contract year 4,400,000
Fifth contract year and thereafter 4,950,000

The Company further increased its shipping capacity by entering into its second shipping
contract which commences in the third quarter of 2010. The Company has committed to
ship a minimum of 2,480 tons for the contract term of 15 years.

Failure by the Company to ship its annual cargo commitment will result in a dead freight
charge equal to 75% of the freight rate of the unshipped tonnes. The Company has the
option, in any given year, to carry forward up to 25% of the yearly contracted tonnage into
the following year

The Company’s shipping contractor is committed to provide shipping capacity to meet
these volume projections and has given the Company assurances that, subject to the
Company making the required commitments and allowing for an appropriate lead time, it
will be able to meet an accelerated sales ramp-up, should it be required.
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RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

During the year ended December 31, 2007, a company controlled by a director of the
Company provided services to the Company in the United States in connection with its
proposed shipping, discharging, and marketing arrangements, at a cost of $0.5 million
compared to $0.3 million for the year ended December 31, 2006. Further, directors of the
Company or the Company’s subsidiary provided technical services to the Company at a
cost of $51,000 compared with $Nil in the comparative 2006 period.

CHANGES IN SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
INCLUDING INITIAL ADOPTION

Other than disclosed elsewhere, the Company adopted the following new accounting
policies in 2007:

Accounting Changes
Effective January 1, 2007, the Company adopted the revised CICA Section 1506,
Accounting Changes, which require that: (a) a voluntary change in accounting principles
can be made if, and only if, the changes result in more reliable and relevant information, (b)
changes in accounting policies are accompanied with disclosure of prior period amounts
and justification for the change, and (c) for changes in estimates, the nature and amount
of the change should be disclosed. The Company has made one voluntary change in
accounting principles since the adoption of the revised standard for a change in reporting
currency.

Financial Instruments
In 2005, the Accounting Standards Board issued three new accounting standards dealing
with the recognition, measurement and disclosure of financial instruments, hedges and
comprehensive income, together with many consequential amendments throughout the
CICA Handbook. Effective January 1, 2007, the Company adopted these standards. Prior
periods have not been restated.

i. Financial Instruments
On January 27, 2005, the CICA issued Handbook section 3855, Financial Instruments –
Recognition and Measurement. This standard prescribes when a financial asset, financial
liability, or non-financial derivative is to be recognized on the balance sheet and whether
fair value or cost-based methods are used to measure the recorded amounts. It also
specifies how financial instrument gains and losses are presented.

Effective January 1, 2007, the Company’s cash equivalents and security deposits have
been classified as available-for-sale and will be recorded at fair value on the balance sheet
with unrealized gains or losses excluded from earnings and reported as other
comprehensive income or loss.

All derivatives will be recorded on the balance sheet at fair value. Mark-to-market
adjustments on these instruments will be included in net income or loss.

The Company’s long-term debt contained an embedded prepayment option. Management
concluded that it was unable to reliably estimate the fair value of the prepayment option to
enable it to be segregated from the underlying long-term debt and accounted for
separately. Accordingly at January 1, 2007 management accounted for long-term debt at
fair value at that date and accounted for changes in the fair value in the statement of
operations for each period until repaid.

Transaction costs associated with the long-term debt were charged to deficit at January 1,
2007.

ii. Hedges
In April 2005, the CICA issued Handbook section 3865, Hedges. This standard is
applicable when a Company chooses to designate a hedging relationship for accounting
purposes. It builds on the existing Accounting Guideline (AcG-13), Hedging Relationships,
and Section 1650, Foreign Currency Translation, by specifying how hedge accounting is
applied and what disclosures are necessary when it is applied. The adoption of this
standard did not have a material effect on the Company’s financial statements.

iii. Comprehensive Income
In April 2005, the CICA issued Handbook section 1530, Comprehensive Income. This
standard requires the presentation of a statement of comprehensive income and its
components. Comprehensive income includes both net earnings and other comprehensive
income. Other comprehensive income includes holding gains and losses on available for
sale investments, gains and losses on certain derivative instruments and foreign currency
gains and losses relating to self-sustaining foreign operations, all of which are not included
in the calculation of net earnings until realized.

Revenue recognition
Revenue, net of any discounts, is recognized on the sale of products at the time the
product’s title is transferred to the buyer, all significant contractual obligations have been
satisfied and the collection of the resulting accounts receivable is reasonably assured.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES

The Company’s accounting policies are described in Note 3 to the December 31, 2007
audited consolidated financial statements. Both the accounting polices used and the
estimates made by management can impact the consolidated financial statements. The
Company considers the estimate of stock-based compensation, fair value of asset-backed
commercial paper and asset retirement obligations to be significant.

The Company uses the fair-value method of accounting for stock based compensation
related to incentive stock options granted and warrants granted. In determining the fair
value, the Company makes estimates of the expected volatility of the stock, the expected
life of the option or warrant and the discount rate. Changes in these estimates could result
in the fair value of the stock-based compensation being materially less than or greater
than the amount recorded.

The ABCP last traded in the active market on August 13, 2007 and there are currently no
market quotations available for this ABCP. The Montreal Proposal is a plan, spearheaded
by a group of major financial institutions, to convert the ABCP into longer term debt with
maturities linked to the underlying assets. There is a significant amount of uncertainty in
estimating the amount and timing of cash flows associated with the ABCP. The Company
estimates the fair value of the ABCP by assessing the currently available market data.
Since the fair value of the ABCP is based on the Company’s assessment of current
conditions, amounts reported may change materially in subsequent periods.

The Company records the fair value of any asset retirement obligation as a long-term
liability in the period in which the related environmental disturbance occurs, based on the
net present value of the estimated future costs. The obligation is adjusted at the end of
each fiscal period to reflect the passage of time and changes in the estimated future costs
underlying the obligation. In determining this obligation, management must make a number
of assumptions about the amount and timing of future cash flows and the discount rate to
be used.

A substantial portion of the Company’s financial assets and liabilities are denominated in
Canadian dollars giving rise to risks from changes in exchange rates. The Company does
not use derivative financial instruments to reduce its foreign exchange exposure.

CAPITAL STOCK

As at the date of this report, the Company had unlimited common shares authorized, of
which 37,339,390 were issued and outstanding.The Company also had 3,487,307 options
outstanding, exercisable into 3,487,307 common shares of which 2,749,089 are currently
vested and 2,153,846 warrants outstanding.

RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

The development and operation of the Company’s construction aggregate properties
involves a high degree of financial risk.The risk factors which should be taken into account
in assessing the Company’s activities include, but are not necessarily limited to, those set
out in the paragraphs below.These risks are not intended to be presented in any assumed
order of priority. Any one or more of these risks could have a material effect on the
Company and should be taken into account in assessing the Company’s activities.

The quarrying industry is competitive and the Company may not secure the construction
aggregate sales volumes and prices anticipated for the Orca Quarry. As the Company’s
sales will be in U.S. dollars, currency fluctuations may adversely affect the Company’s
revenues once sales commence. Further, the Company must secure access to additional
discharge points and additional shipping volumes for its products.An additional risk exists
that the Company may be unable to meet minimum freight contract volumes, particularly
during the earlier years of the contract.

Quarrying involves a high degree of risk and the Company has no history of construction
aggregate project development or operations. Additionally, certain groups are opposed to
quarrying and could attempt to interfere with the Company’s operations, whether by legal
process, regulatory process or otherwise. The Company’s title to its properties may be
subject to disputes or other claims, including land title claims of First Nations. Construction
aggregate quarrying, processing and development activities are highly regulated and
changes to government regulations or interpretation of those regulations may also
adversely affect the Company. The Company currently depends on a single property with
a construction aggregate reserve that has an estimated life of 25 years. In order to maintain
its annual production the Company will be required to obtain other construction aggregate
resources in the future to bring into production. The Company’s operations are subject to
environmental risks and the actual costs of reclamation for the property are uncertain.
Further, the Company’s insurance will not cover all the potential risks associated with a
quarrying operation.

The Company is principally dependent upon its key personnel and will also be required to
recruit and retain personnel to facilitate the growth of the Company.

The specifics of the Company’s risks are detailed in disclosures with the heading “Risk
Factors” in the Company’s periodic filings with securities regulators.
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CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES

Disclosure controls and procedures are designed to provide reasonable assurance that all
relevant information is gathered and reported to senior management on a timely basis so
that appropriate information is gathered and reported to senior management on a timely
basis so that appropriate decisions can be made regarding public disclosure.

The purpose of internal controls over financial reporting as defined by the Canadian
Securities Administrators is to provide reasonable assurance that:

i. financial statements prepared for external purposes are in accordance with the
Company’s policies and Canadian Generally Accepted Accounting Principles,

ii. transactions are recorded as necessary to permit the preparation of financial
statements and records are maintained in reasonable detail,

iii. receipts and expenditures of the Company are made only in accordance with
authorizations of the Company’s management and directors, and

iv. unauthorized acquisitions, uses or dispositions of the Company’s assets that could
have a material effect on the financial statements will be prevented or detected in
order to prevent material error in financial statements.

Management has engaged external consultants to evaluate the design of the Company’s
internal controls and procedures over financial reporting and believes the design to be
sufficient and appropriate to provide such reasonable assurance.

The consultants have made recommendations for improvement in certain aspects of the
design of Company’s system of internal controls. Based on the consultants
recommendations the Company intends to formalize approval and review processes by
using checklists and initialing source documents, reconciliations and other accounting
worksheets on a more consistent basis. The Company has a relatively small accounting
and administrative department as such, adequate segregation of duties can become a
control issue. Management believes, however, that any control deficiencies in this regard
are compensated for by the provision of an adequate level of supervision by senior
executives. It should be pointed out that internal controls, however well conceived, can
provide only reasonable, but not absolute, assurance that the objectives of the internal
controls and procedures will prevent all errors or fraud.

No changes were made in our disclosure controls or our internal control over financial
reporting during 2007 that have materially affected, or are reasonably likely to materially
affect, our internal control over financial reporting.

CAUTIONARY NOTE REGARDING 
FORWARD LOOKING STATEMENTS

This Management’s Discussion and Analysis release contains “forward-looking statements”
and “forward-looking information” within the meaning of applicable securities laws. These
statements and information appear in a number of places in this document and include
estimates, forecasts, information and statements as to management’s expectations with
respect to, among other things the future financial or operating performance of the
Company, costs and timing of the development of the construction aggregate quarry, the
timing and amount of estimated future production, costs of production, capital and
operating expenditures, requirements for additional capital, government regulation of
quarrying operations, environmental risks, reclamation expenses, and title disputes. Often,
but not always, forward-looking statements and information can be identified by the use of
words such as “may”, “will”, “should”, “plans”, “expects”, “intends”, “anticipates”, “believes”,
“budget”, and “scheduled” or the negative thereof or variations thereon or similar
terminology. Forward-looking statements and information are necessarily based upon a
number of estimates and assumptions that, while considered reasonable by management,
are inherently subject to significant business, economic and competitive uncertainties and
contingencies. Readers are cautioned that any such forward-looking statements and
information are not guarantees and there can be no assurance that such statements and
information will prove to be accurate and actual results and future events could differ
materially from those anticipated in such statements. Important factors that could cause
actual results to differ materially from the Company’s expectations are disclosed under the
heading “Risks and Uncertainties” in the Company’s Annual Report and under the heading
“Risk Factors” in the Company’s Annual Information Form (AIF) in respect of its financial
year-ended December 31, 2006, both of which are filed with Canadian regulators on
SEDAR (www.sedar.com).The Company expressly disclaims any intention or obligation to
update or revise any forward-looking statements and information whether as a result of
new information, future events or otherwise.All written and oral forward-looking statements
and information attributable to us or persons acting on our behalf are expressly qualified in
their entirety by the foregoing cautionary statements.

OTHER INFORMATION

Additional information related to the Company is available for viewing on SEDAR at
www.sedar.com and at the Company’s website at www.polarmin.com.
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CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Decmber 31, 2007 and 2006

(expressed in thousands U.S. dollars)
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The consolidated financial statements of Polaris Minerals Corporation have been prepared by and are the
responsibility of the management of the Company.The consolidated financial statements are prepared in accordance
with Canadian generally accepted accounting principles and reflect management’s best estimates and judgement
based on currently available information.

The Audit Committee of the Board of Directors, consisting of three independent directors, meets periodically with
management and the independent auditors to review the scope and results of the annual audit, and to review the
financial statements and related financial reporting matters prior to submitting the financial statements to the Board 
for approval.

The Company’s independent auditors, PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP, who are appointed by the shareholders,
conducted an audit in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards. Their report outlines the
scope of their audit and gives their opinion on the consolidated financial statements.

Management has developed and maintains a system of internal controls to provide reasonable assurance that the
Company’s assets are safeguarded, transactions are authorized and financial information is accurate and reliable.

Marco Romero

President and Chief Executive Officer

Lisa Dea

Vice President, Finance and Chief Financial Officer

March 31, 2008

MANAGEMENT’S RESPONSIBILITY 
FOR FINANCIAL REPORTING
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TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF POLARIS MINERALS CORPORATION

We have audited the consolidated balance sheets of Polaris Minerals Corporation as at December 31, 2007 and
2006 and the consolidated statements of operations and deficit, comprehensive income (loss) and cash flows for the
years then ended.These financial statements are the responsibility of the Company’s management. Our responsibility
is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards. Those standards
require that we plan and perform an audit to obtain reasonable assurance whether the financial statements are free
of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements.An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant
estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation.

In our opinion, these consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of
the Company as at December 31, 2007 and 2006 and the results of its operations and its cash flows for the years then
ended in accordance with Canadian generally accepted accounting principles.

Chartered Accountants

Vancouver, British Columbia

March 31, 2008

AUDITORS’ REPORT
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(all amounts expressed in thousands, except per share amounts) 2007 2006
(U.S. dollars) $ $

Assets
Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents 15,234 42,397
Accounts receivable 4,376 2,681
Prepaid expenses and deposits 426 146
Inventories (note 4) 1,781 47

21,817 45,271
Property, plant and equipment (note 5) 111,654 71,455
Investment (note 6) 3,825 –
Security deposits (note 7) 1,226 601
Loan receivable (note 8) 5,471 –
Deferred financing costs (note 9) – 785

143,993 118,112

Liabilities
Current liabilities
Accounts payable 1,102 4,598
Income taxes payable (note 18) 269 –
Accruals 2,753 7,698
Current portion of capital leases (note 10) 529 416

4,653 12,712
Capital leases (note 10) 2,723 2,771
Long-term debt (note 11) – 31,000
Asset retirement obligation (note 12) 1,945 1,510
Deferred charges 64 –
Non-controlling interest (note 13) 1,769 1,775

11,154 49,768

Shareholders’ Equity
Share capital (note 14) 131,773 79,820
Warrants (note 11) 3,452 –
Contributed surplus (note 15) 9,833 2,179

145,058 81,999
Accumulated other comprehensive income (note 16) 20,478 (132)
Deficit (32,697) (13,523)

(12,219) (13,655)
132,839 68,344
143,993 118,112

Commitments (note 17)
Subsequent event (note 23)

Approved by the Board of Directors

Roman Shklanka, Director John Purkis, Director

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
As at December 31, 2007 and 2006 
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(all amounts expressed in thousands, except per share amounts) 2007 2006
(U.S. dollars) $ $

Sales 15,467 –
Cost of goods sold (14,430) –

1,037 –
Expenses
Amortization and accretion 216 220
General and administrative 4,544 3,792
Marketing 609 357
Stock-based compensation 8,224 834

13,593 5,203
Loss from operations (12,556) (5,203)
Gain on disposal of asset – 4
Write down of property, plant & equipment (note 5(e)) (347) –
Change in fair value of long-term debt (note 2) (3,377) –
Provision on investment (note 6) (2,039) –
Foreign exchange (1,495) (101)
Interest income 1,652 1,759
Interest expense (242) –
Loss before taxes and non-controlling interest (18,404) (3,541)
Non-controlling interest 293 208
Income tax provision (note 18) (269) –
Loss for the year (18,380) (3,333)
Deficit – beginning of year (13,523) (10,190)
Adjustment in respect of the adoption of the 

new accounting standards (notes 2 and 11) (794) –

Deficit – end of year (32,697) (13,523)

Basic and diluted loss per common share (0.52) (0.11)

Weighted average number of common shares outstanding 35,293 29,180

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS 
OF OPERATIONS AND DEFICIT
For the years ended December 31, 2007 and 2006    (all amounts expressed in thousands, except per share amounts) (U.S. dollars)
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(all amounts expressed in thousands, except per share amounts) 2007 2006
(U.S. dollars) $ $

Loss for the year (18,380) (3,333)

Other comprehensive income
Currency translation adjustment (note 2) 20,610 –
Mark-to-market adjustment on available-for-sale financial instruments – –
Less: reclassified to net income on realization (37) –

20,573 –

Comprehensive income (loss) for the year 2,193 (3,333)

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS 
OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (LOSS)
For the years ended December 31, 2007 and 2006
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(all amounts expressed in thousands, except per share amounts) 2007 2006
(U.S. dollars) $ $

Cash flows from operating activities
Loss for the year (18,380) (3,333)

Items not affecting cash 
Amortization and accretion 2,956 220
Write down of property, plant & equipment 347 –
Gain on disposal of asset – (4)
Non-controlling interest (293) (208)
Change in fair value of long-term debt 3,377 –
Provision on investment 2,039 –
Stock-based compensation 8,224 834

(1,730) (2,491)
Changes in non-cash working capital items

Accounts receivable (591) (2,656)
Prepaid expenses and deposits (235) 148
Inventories (1,413) (49)
Income taxes payable 269 –
Accounts payable (958) (41)
Accruals 1,514 278

(1,414) (2,320)
(3,144) (4,811)

Cash flows from financing activities
Net proceeds from issue of common shares 51,323 64,100
Long-term debt (31,000) 31,000
Non-controlling cash contributions – 881
Deferred financing costs – (514)
Capital lease payments (455) (162)

19,868 95,305

Cash flows from investing activities
Loan receivable (5,388) –
Investment (5,463) –
Other deferred charges 64 –
Property, plant and equipment costs (39,747) (49,835)
Security deposits (477) (628)

(51,011) (50,463)
Effect of foreign currency translation on cash and cash equivalents 7,124 1,369
(Decrease) increase in cash and cash equivalents (27,163) 41,400
Cash and cash equivalents – beginning of year 42,397 997
Cash and cash equivalents – end of year 15,234 42,397
Cash and cash equivalents consist of

Cash 15,234 4,172
Short-term investments – 38,225

15,234 42,397
Supplemental cash flow information (note 21)

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
For the years ended December 31, 2007 and 2006
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS
December 31, 2007 and 2006
(all amounts expressed in thousands, except per share amounts) (U.S. dollars)

1 NATURE OF OPERATIONS 

Polaris Minerals Corporation (The “Company”) was incorporated on May 14, 1999. It is
engaged in the development and operation of construction aggregates properties and
related projects located on the west coast of North America.

2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Change in reporting currency
Effective January 1, 2007, the Company changed its reporting currency to the U.S. dollar
(USD). The change in reporting currency is to better reflect the Company’s business
activities and to improve investors’ ability to compare the Company’s financial results with
other publicly traded businesses in the industry. The Company will conduct most of its
sales and shipping contracts in USD. Prior to January 1, 2007, the Company reported its
annual and quarterly consolidated balance sheets and the related consolidated statements
of operations and cash flows in the Canadian dollar (CDN). In making this change in
reporting currency, the Company followed the recommendations of the Emerging Issues
Committee (EIC) of the Canadian Institute of Chartered Accountants (CICA), set out in
EIC-130, Translation Method when the Reporting Currency Differs from the Measurement
Currency or there is a Change in the Reporting Currency.

In accordance with EIC-130, the financial statements for all years and periods presented
have been translated in to the new reporting currency using the current rate method. Under
this method, the statements of operations and cash flows statements items for each year
and period have been translated into the reporting currency using the average exchange
rates prevailing during each reporting period.All assets and liabilities have been translated
using the exchange rate prevailing at the consolidated balance sheets dates. Shareholders’
equity transactions since January 1, 2006 have been translated using the rates of
exchange in effect as of the dates of the various capital transactions, while shareholders’
equity balances on January 1, 2006 have been translated at the exchange rate on that
date. All resulting exchange differences arising from the translation are included as a
separate component of other comprehensive income.All comparative financial information
has been restated to reflect the Company’s results as if they had been historically reported
in U.S. dollars.

Accounting Changes
Effective January 1, 2007, the Company adopted the revised CICA Section 1506,
Accounting Changes, which require that: (a) a voluntary change in accounting principles
can be made if, and only if, the changes result in more reliable and relevant information, (b)
changes in accounting policies are accompanied with disclosure of prior period amounts
and justification for the change, and (c) for changes in estimates, the nature and amount
of the change should be disclosed. The Company has made one voluntary change in
accounting principles since the adoption of the revised standard for a change in reporting
currency (see Change in Reporting Currency).

Financial Instruments
In 2005, the Accounting Standards Board issued three new accounting standards dealing
with the recognition, measurement and disclosure of financial instruments, hedges and
comprehensive income, together with many consequential amendments throughout the
CICA Handbook. Effective January 1, 2007, the Company adopted these standards. Prior
periods have not been restated.

a) Financial Instruments
On January 27, 2005, the CICA issued Handbook section 3855, Financial Instruments -
Recognition and Measurement. This standard prescribes when a financial asset, financial
liability, or non-financial derivative is to be recognized on the balance sheet and whether
fair value or cost-based methods are used to measure the recorded amounts. It also
specifies how financial instrument gains and losses are presented.

Effective January 1, 2007, the Company’s cash equivalents and security deposits have
been classified as available-for-sale and will be recorded at fair value on the balance sheet
with unrealized gains or losses excluded from earnings and reported as other
comprehensive income or loss.

All derivatives will be recorded on the balance sheet at fair value. Mark-to-market
adjustments on these instruments will be included in net income or loss.

The Company’s long-term debt contained an embedded prepayment option. Management
concluded that it was unable to reliably estimate the fair value of the prepayment option to
enable it to be segregated from the underlying long-term debt and accounted for
separately. Accordingly at January 1, 2007 management accounted for long-term debt at
fair value at that date and accounted for changes in the fair value in the statements of
operations for each period until repaid (note 11).

Transaction costs associated with the long-term debt were charged to deficit at January 1,
2007.
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b) Hedges
In April 2005, the CICA issued Handbook section 3865, Hedges. This standard is
applicable when a company chooses to designate a hedging relationship for accounting
purposes. It builds on the existing Accounting Guideline (AcG-13), Hedging Relationships,
and Section 1650, Foreign Currency Translation, by specifying how hedge accounting is
applied and what disclosures are necessary when it is applied. The adoption of this
standard did not have a material effect on the Company’s financial statements.

c) Comprehensive Income
In April 2005, the CICA issued Handbook section 1530, Comprehensive Income. This
standard requires the presentation of a statement of comprehensive income and its
components. Comprehensive income includes both net earnings and other comprehensive
income. Other comprehensive income includes holding gains and losses on available-for-
sale investments, gains and losses on certain derivative instruments, foreign currency
gains and losses relating to self-sustaining foreign operations and foreign currency gains
and losses relating to the translation of the Company’s currency of measurement into a
different reporting currency, all of which are not included in the calculation of net earnings
until realized.

3 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Accounting principles
These financial statements are prepared in accordance with Canadian generally accepted
accounting principles.

Principles of consolidation
The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of the Company and it
subsidiaries. The subsidiaries and the Company’s ownership interests therein, are as
follows: Eagle Rock Materials Ltd. (ERM) (70%), Eagle Rock Aggregates, Inc. (70%),
Quality Rock Holdings Ltd. (100%), Polaris Aggregates Inc. (100%), Orca Sand & Gravel
Limited Partnership (OS&G LP) (88%), Orca Sand & Gravel Ltd. (88%), Quality Sand &
Gravel Ltd. (100%), 5329 Investments Ltd. (100%), Orca Finance Ltd. (100%), North Island
Sand & Gravel Ltd. (100%) and Polaris Materials Inc. (100%). The Orca Sand & Gravel
Limited Partnership’s year-end is January 31st.

Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and short-term investments with original
maturities of three months or less from the date of acquisition.

Translation of foreign currency
For the Company’s integrated foreign operations, monetary assets and liabilities are
translated at the year-end exchange rates and other assets and liabilities are translated at
historical rates. Revenues, expenses and cash flows are translated at monthly average
exchange rates. Gains and losses on translation of monetary assets and monetary
liabilities are charged to income or loss.

Use of estimates
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with Canadian generally accepted
accounting principles requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect
the amounts reported in the consolidated financial statements. Significant areas where
management’s judgement is applied include impairment of property plant and equipment,
estimating the useful life and rate of depletion and amortization of property plant and
equipment, impairment of investments, asset retirement obligations, stock-based
compensation, liability accruals and income tax valuation allowances. These estimates
and assumptions affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities, and the disclosure
of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements, and revenue
and expenses for the periods reported. Actual results may differ from those estimates.

Revenue recognition
Revenue, net of any discounts, is recognized on the sale of products at the time the
product’s title is transferred to the buyer, all significant contractual obligations have been
satisfied and the collection of the resulting accounts receivable is reasonably assured.

Inventories
Construction aggregates inventory is stated at the lower of cost or net realizable value. Cost
for construction aggregates inventory is determined on an average cost basis. Such costs
include fuel, repair parts and supplies, raw materials, direct labour and production
overhead. Consumable supplies are stated at the lower of cost and replacement cost.
Costs for consumable supplies are determined on a first-in, first-out basis.

Property, plant and equipment
Expenditures incurred to develop new construction aggregate properties or marine
receiving terminals in advance of construction are capitalized. Costs are written down to fair
value amount if impaired, or written off if the property or interest is sold, allowed to lapse
or abandoned. Costs incurred on properties prior to the acquisition or the determination of
potentially viable deposits are charged to operations.

The carrying values of undeveloped quarrying interests and terminal interests represent
costs incurred to date and do not necessarily reflect present or future values.The recovery
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of carrying values will depend upon the Company establishing economically recoverable
reserves for quarrying interests, obtaining financing for construction and attaining profitable
operations.

Developed property, plant and equipment are carried at cost less accumulated
amortization and depletion. Capitalized costs for quarries are depleted using a unit of
production method over the estimated economic life of the quarry to which they relate
following the commencement of operations. Capitalized costs for marine receiving
terminals are amortized over the useful lives of the underlying interests following the
commencement of operations. Amortization related to production is included in cost of
goods sold.

The following items are recorded at cost and are amortized on a straight-line basis over
their estimated useful lives as follows:

Office furniture, equipment and fixtures 3.3 years
Motor vehicles 3 years
Fixed plant and machinery 20 years
Marine facilities 25 years
Building and land improvements 25 to 39 years
Mobile plant 5 to 10 years
Leasehold improvements life of lease

The cost of equipment held under capital leases is equal to the lower of the net present
value of the minimum lease payments or the fair value of the leased property at the
inception of the lease and is amortized over the term of the lease, except when there is
reasonable certainty that the leased assets will be purchased at the end of the lease, in
which case they are amortized over the estimated useful life.

Impairment of long-lived assets
The Company reviews and evaluates its long-lived assets for impairment when events or
changes in circumstances indicate that the related carrying amounts may not be
recoverable. An impairment loss is recognized when the asset-carrying value exceeds the
net recoverable amount. The net recoverable amount is generally determined using
estimated undiscounted future cash flows. Impairment is considered to exist if total
estimated future cash flows on an undiscounted basis are less than the carrying amount
of the asset. An impairment loss is measured and recorded based on the estimated fair
value of the assets.Assumptions underlying future cash flow estimates are subject to risks
and uncertainties. Any differences between significant assumptions used and actual
market conditions and/or the Company’s performance could have a material effect on the
Company’s financial position and results of operations.

Deferred financing costs
In 2006, the finance costs associated with the issue of the long-term debt were held as
deferred financing costs and were amortized over the period of the liability.

Financing costs in 2007 are expensed as incurred.

Asset retirement obligation
The Company recognizes liabilities for statutory, contractual or legal obligations associated
with the retirement of property, plant and equipment. The Company records the fair value
of any asset retirement obligations as a long-term liability in the period in which the related
environmental disturbance occurs, based on the net present value of the estimated future
costs. The liability is accreted over time through periodic charges to operations and it is
reduced by actual costs of decommissioning and reclamation.The fair value of the liability
is added to the carrying amount of the capitalized mineral property. This additional
capitalized amount will be amortized once commercial production commences and will
continue to be amortized over the estimated useful life of the asset. The obligation is
adjusted at the end of each fiscal period to reflect the passage of time and changes in the
estimated future costs underlying the obligation.

Stock options
The Company applies the fair value method of accounting for all stock option awards.
Under this method the Company recognizes a compensation expense for all stock options
awarded based on the fair value of the options on the date of grant which is determined by
using a Black-Scholes option pricing model. Accordingly, the fair value of all stock options
granted is recorded, over the vesting period, as a charge to operations and a credit to
contributed surplus. Consideration paid on exercise of stock options in addition to the fair
value attributed to stock options granted is credited to share capital.

Income taxes
Income taxes are calculated using the liability method of accounting.Temporary differences
arising from the difference between the tax basis of an asset or liability and its carrying
amount on the balance sheet are used to calculate future income tax liabilities or assets.
Future income tax assets and liabilities are measured using tax rates and laws that are
expected to apply when the temporary differences are expected to reverse. Future income
tax assets are recognized only to the extent that, in the opinion of management, it is more
likely than not that the assets will be realized.
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Loss per common share
Loss per common share is calculated using the weighted average number of common
shares outstanding during the year. All outstanding stock options and warrants would be
anti-dilutive and therefore have no effect on the determination of loss per share.

Comparative figures
Certain of the prior year’s comparative figures have been reclassified to conform to the
current year’s classification.

Recent accounting pronouncements

Capital Disclosures
The CICA has issued a new accounting standard, Section 1535, Capital Disclosures,
which establishes standards for disclosing qualitative information about an entity’s capital
and how it is managed. This new standard applies to interim and annual financial
statements relating to fiscal years beginning on or after October 1, 2007.

Financial Instrument Disclosures
In March 2007, the CICA issued Section 3862, Financial Instruments - Disclosures, and
Section 3863, Financial Instruments - Presentation, which together comprise a complete
set of disclosure and presentation requirements that revise and enhance current disclosure
requirements for financial instruments. Section 3862 requires disclosure of additional detail
by financial asset and liability categories. Section 3863 establishes standards for
presentation of financial instruments and non-financial derivatives. It deals with the
classification of financial instruments, from the perspective of the issuer, between liabilities
and equity, the classification of related interest, dividends, losses and gains, and the
circumstances in which financial assets and financial liabilities are offset.The Company will
implement these disclosures in the first quarter of 2008.

Inventories
In June 2007, the CICA issued Section 3031, Inventories, which provides more guidance
on the measurement and disclosure requirements for inventories. Specifically the new
pronouncement requires inventories to be measured at the lower of cost and net realizable
value, and provides guidance on the determination of cost and its subsequent recognition
as an expense, including any write down to net realizable value. The pronouncement also
provides guidance on the cost formulas that are used to assign costs to inventories. The
new pronouncement is effective in the first quarter of 2008, and the new standard is not
expected to have a material impact on the Company’s net income or loss.

Convergence with International Financial Reporting Standards
In 2006, Canada’s Accounting Standards Board ratified a strategic plan that will result in
Canadian generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP), as used by public companies,
being evolved and converged with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) over
a transitional period to be complete by 2011. The official changeover date from Canadian
GAAP to IFRS is for interim and annual financial statements relating to fiscal years
beginning on or after January 1, 2011. As the International Accounting Standards Board
currently has projects underway that should result in new pronouncements and since this
Canadian convergence initiative is very much in its infancy as of the date of these
statements, the Company has not yet assessed the impact of the ultimate adoption of
IFRS on the Company.

4 INVENTORIES

Inventories at December 31 are as follows:
2007 2006

$ $

Construction aggregates 1,515 –
Components and consumable supplies 266 47

1,781 47



POLARIS MINERALS CORPORATION   2007 ANNUAL REPORT

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

54

5 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
2007 2006

Accumulated Accumulated
Depletion or Net Book Depletion or Net Book

Cost Amortization Value Cost Amortization Value
$ $ $ $ $ $

Orca Quarry
Property costs 14,204 (666) 13,538 10,560 – 10,560
Construction in progress – – – 40,843 – 40,843

Richmond Terminal
Property costs 11,277 – 11,277 4,850 – 4,850
Construction in progress – – – 9,799 – 9,799

Tug
Construction in progress 416 – 416 – – –

Motor vehicles 236 (108) 128 185 (31) 154
Fixed plant and machinery 23,775 (887) 22,888 – – –
Marine facilities 28,862 (943) 27,919 – – –
Building and land improvements 28,729 (41) 28,688 – – –
Mobile plant 662 (21) 641 – – –
Equipment (held under capital lease) 3,887 (470) 3,417 3,306 (80) 3,226
Furniture, equipment, tools and fixtures 866 (356) 510 601 (169) 432
Leasehold improvements 248 (35) 213 14 (8) 6
Eagle Rock Quarry project 1,553 – 1,553 1,301 – 1,301
Other exploration properties 368 – 368 3 – 3
Other marine receiving terminals 98 – 98 281 – 281

115,181 (3,527) 111,654 71,743 (288) 71,455

a) Orca Quarry
The Orca Quarry is a sand and gravel quarry with a plant capable of producing six million
tonnes of sand and gravel per year. It is on tidewater, west of the town of Port McNeill,
British Columbia. Production commenced at the Orca Quarry in February 2007 and as of
March 1, 2007, the Company ceased to capitalize costs of the project unless they are
capital in nature. Shipping of sand and gravel began in March 2007 to the Greater
Vancouver market in barges and in April 2007 shipping began in self-unloading bulk
carriers to San Francisco Bay.

The Orca Quarry is situated on fee simple, private lands owned by Western Forest
Products Inc. (“WFP”), namely the East Cluxewe deposit, over which the Partnership (as

defined below) has entered into a profit a prendre to gain access to, and obtain rights to,
the rock, stone and sand located thereon. The profit a prendre has a term of 10 years,
with four ten-year extensions at the option of the Company and the Company will make
royalty payments at an agreed rate per tonne of construction aggregates sold, subject to
periodic inflationary adjustments and a minimum royalty in the fifth year of the term.

The Orca Quarry, which is situated on the East Cluxewe deposit, lies within the asserted
traditional territories of the Kwakiutl Band (the “Kwakiutl”) and the Namgis First Nation (the
“Namgis”).

The Company and the Namgis are partners in the OS&G LP (the Partnership), which
holds the Orca Quarry, and have an Impact and Benefits Agreement (“IBA”) over their
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asserted traditional territory, which includes the East Cluxewe deposit and portions of
adjacent lands. The Company owns 88% and the Namgis owns 12% of the Partnership.
Under the terms of the IBA, certain preferential opportunities will be granted to the Namgis
for business development, employment and training within their community, contributions
based on construction aggregates sold will be made by the Partnership to foundations for
communities located within the asserted traditional territories of the Namgis and Kwakiutl,
and a standstill, for a period of 20 years, in the event that treaties are settled over the Orca
Quarry site, the Namgis will not impose a tenure or tax regime which is less favourable than
the tenure and tax regime that would have governed had the treaties not been settled.
Further, in December 2031, the Namgis will have the one-time right to increase their then
ownership in the Partnership by up to 50%, by purchasing Partnership units from the
Company for cash at fair market value.

The Company and the Namgis also have a loan agreement whereby the Company will
make advances to the Namgis, at their request, to enable them to make their required
equity contributions to the Partnership. Advances made prior to the construction decision
bear interest at prime plus a small margin. Advances made after the construction decision
bear substantially higher interest rates, reflective of the equity nature of the funding. The
Company’s sole recourse for repayment is to the distributions receivable by the Namgis
from the Partnership. Advances made after a construction decision are repayable solely
from those distributions and cannot be prepaid.

The Kwakiutl and the Company have an Impact and Benefits Agreement which applies
solely to the Orca Quarry site.The agreement has terms which include payment of staged
cash amounts, a royalty based on construction aggregates sold, certain preferential
opportunities for business development, employment and training within the Kwakiutl
community and a standstill, for a period of 20 years. In the event that treaties are settled
over the Orca Quarry site, the Kwakiutl will not impose a tenure or tax regime which is less
favourable than the tenure and tax regime that would have governed had the treaties not
been settled.

The East Cluxewe deposit is subject to royalties payable by the Orca Quarry to WFP,
Kwakiutl First Nation and certain other local communities aggregating $1.06 per tonne of
construction aggregates sold.

b) Richmond Terminal
The Company has a twenty-year lease, with two ten-year extensions, with Levin
Enterprises, Inc. for a construction aggregates storage and distribution site in the Port of
Richmond in San Francisco Bay. In combination with the Levin lease, the Company has a
twenty-year lease, with two ten-year extensions for the berthing of vessels at the Richmond

Terminal. Construction on the terminal began in early 2007 and operations commenced at
the terminal on January 1, 2008 whereby the Company ceased to capitalize costs of the
project unless they are capital in nature.

c) Eagle Rock Quarry Project
The Eagle Rock Quarry Project is located on deep tidewater in the Alberni Inlet, southwest
of the city of Port Alberni, British Columbia. The Company expects to quarry, crush and
screen the granite resource to produce construction aggregates products on site. Products
are expected to be shipped in bulk carriers or barges to coastal urban markets on the
West Coast of North America and Hawaii.

The Company has an environmental assessment certificate, mine permit and fifty-year
lease with the Province of British Columbia for the Eagle Rock Quarry Project.A foreshore
lease application for the ship loader has been approved in principle, and the terms are
currently being negotiated.

The Eagle Rock Quarry Project is held by ERM.The Company owns 70% of ERM, with the
remaining 30% being owned 10% each by the Hupacasath First Nation (Hupacasath) and
the Ucluelet First Nation (Ucluelet) and 10% is held in trust by the Company for the
Tseshaht First Nation (Tseshaht).

The Company, the Hupacasath and the Ucluelet have a shareholders’ agreement and an
impact and benefits agreement. The principal terms of those agreements are as follows:

• Prior to a construction decision, the Company will fund ERM by making capital
contributions to ERM, on behalf of all the shareholders.

• In the event that the Tseshaht do not choose to participate in ERM within a specific
time after the approval of a feasibility study, the other First Nations will have the right
to equally acquire the 10% interest held in trust for the Tseshaht.

• If First Nation shareholders elect not to make their equity contributions to the
development financing, the Company will acquire 30% of their interest in ERM in
return for funding the 70% balance of their equity contributions. If all three First Nations
fail to make their equity contributions, the Company will own 79% and the First Nations
will own 21% of ERM.

• Any loans to the First Nations will bear interest at a rate closely tied to the internal rate
of return of the Eagle Rock Quarry development. The Company’s sole recourse for
repayment will be to dividends receivable by the First Nations from ERM as the loans
are repayable solely from dividends.
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• Certain preferential opportunities have been granted to the First Nations for business
development, employment, and training within their communities.

• In the event that treaties are settled over the Eagle Rock Quarry area, the First Nations
have agreed not to impose a tenure or tax regime on ERM, for a term of at least 25
years from the date of such treaties, which is less favourable than the tenure and tax
regime that would have governed had the treaties not been settled.

• On the 25th anniversary of the development financing of the Eagle Rock Quarry, each
First Nation will have the one-time right to increase their ownership in ERM by 50%,
by purchasing ERM shares from the Company for cash at fair market value.

d) Other exploration properties

Cougar deposit
The Cougar deposit is located on the shores of Rupert Inlet, approximately 19 kilometres
west of the Orca Quarry and 19 kilometres south of the town of Port Hardy. The Company
entered into a ten-year Licence of Occupation with the Government of British Columbia on
October 10, 2007 covering the lands and the foreshore of the Cougar deposit.

Other
The Company is exploring and performing preliminary geophysical testing on properties in
the vicinity of the Orca Quarry, including the Bear Creek and West Cluxewe Deposits.

The Company has exclusive right to negotiate a lease associated with the Bear Creek
deposit with Island Timberlands prior to June 30, 2008 to gain access to, and obtain rights
to, the rock, stone and sand located thereon.

e) Other marine receiving terminals

The Company is evaluating, negotiating and permitting access to several sites at ports in
California for the discharge, storage and distribution of construction aggregates.

In the fourth quarter of 2007, The Company ceased negotiations with the Port of Redwood
City for the development of its Redwood City construction aggregates marine receiving
terminal and therefore wrote off $347 in capitalized costs.The Company has an agreement
in principle with Cemex, Inc. (“Cemex”) to jointly re-develop Cemex’s Redwood City
Terminal to expand the construction aggregate marine receiving terminal facilities.

6 INVESTMENT

The Company has an investment in third party asset backed commercial paper (“ABCP”)
with a par value of $5,857. At the date the Company acquired the ABCP it was rated R1
(High) by Dominion Bond Rating Services (“DBRS”), the highest credit rating issued for
commercial paper. During August, 2007 the ABCP market experienced liquidity issues
and as a result of these market conditions the Company’s ABCP did not settle as it matured
on August 17, 2007. There has been no active trading of the ABCP since mid-August 2007
and no market quotations are currently available. A group representing banks, asset
providers and major investors (the “Montreal Group”) has reached an agreement in
principle to restructure the ABCP market. This restructuring will replace the existing short-
term investments with longer term notes with a maturity of seven years, on average.These
notes will be issued as Senior and Subordinated Notes and a margin facility will be in
place for those investors who do not wish to self finance margin calls. The Company
believes the majority of its ABCP will be eligible for restructuring.

There is a significant amount of uncertainty in estimating the amount and timing of cash
flows associated with the ABCP. At December 31, 2007, the Company has made a fair
value determination of this investment using a probability weighted valuation technique
which considers the time value of money and the associated credit risk. The Company
used the following assumptions in its valuation based on limited available information: the
majority of the trust is a going concern, the Senior Notes will be AAA rated, and the Notes
will be interest bearing but interest received will be net of the restructuring costs and the
standby fees on the margin facility. The credit risk was estimated by management and
these estimates are based on observable market prices or rates. Changes in the
assumptions may have an effect on the fair market value of this investment. In addition,
there is no certainty regarding the eventual recovery of this investment and consequently
the timing and amount of any future cash flows may vary materially from current estimates.

The fair value write-down of this investment was $2,039 for the year ended December 31,
2007. The fair value write-down could range from $1,151 to $3,327 based on alternative
reasonable assumptions.

This investment has been classified as available-for-sale on initial recognition and was
carried at fair value in cash and cash equivalents. To reflect the lack of liquidity in the
ABCP market and the uncertainty surrounding the timing of cash flows, the investment has
been reclassified as long term.
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7 SECURITY DEPOSITS

The Company has issued $1,226 (2006 – $601) in irrevocable standby letters of credit and
safekeeping agreements as performance bonds on the Orca Quarry. The letters of credit
are automatically renewed each year until returned to the Company upon completion of the
performance bond and are secured by interest-bearing deposits of $1,226 (2006 – $601).
Deposits bear interest at a rate of 2.75% to 4.25% (2006 – 4.25%) as at December 31,
2007.

8 LOAN RECEIVABLE

During the year ended December 31, 2007, the Company loaned $5,471 to a third party for
the purchase of certain assets for the facilitation of shipping construction aggregates. The
loan bears interest of 5.5% per annum with interest payable monthly and the principal
balance due in 2027. The Company has security over various assets of the third party.
The loan has been accounted for under the amortized cost method. At December 31,
2007, the fair value of the loan receivable approximates carrying value.

9 DEFERRED FINANCING COSTS

As at December 31, 2007, deferred financing costs amounted to $nil (2006 – $785).

Deferred financing costs comprised of legal and other costs directly related to the
completion of the Company’s long-term debt facility (note 11).

10  CAPITAL LEASES

Included in property, plant and equipment is quarrying equipment that the Company has
acquired pursuant to a five year lease agreement, terminating October 28, 2011 at an
interest rate of 7.0% and 7.05%. The quarrying equipment is the security for the
indebtedness. Future minimum lease payments are as follows:

2007 2006
$ $

2007 – 631
2008 742 631
2009 742 631
2010 742 631
2011 1,621 1,380
Total minimum lease payments 3,847 3,904
Less: Interest portion 595 717
Present value of capital lease obligation 3,252 3,187
Less: Current portion 529 416
Non-current portion 2,723 2,771

11  LONG-TERM DEBT
2007 2006

$ $

Tranche A and B – 31,000

During the year ended December 31, 2006, the Company drew down $31,000 from a
long-term debt facility. Upon draw down, the Company paid a 1.5% debt advisory fee.
During the year ended December 31, 2007, the Company repaid the outstanding debt.
Deferred financing costs of $794 were charged to deficit effective January 1, 2007 upon the
adoption of the new accounting standards on Financial Instruments.

In connection with the Company’s first sale of construction aggregates to California, the
Company issued 2,153,846 warrants in accordance with the terms of the long-term debt
agreement. Each warrant is exercisable into one common share at $4.84 (CDN$4.80) per
share until November 30, 2010.The Company recognized the fair value of these warrants,
effective January 1, 2007, with a corresponding reduction in the amount of the debt. The
warrants were valued at $3,452 using the Black-Scholes option pricing model using a risk
free rate of between 3.89% and 4.08%, an expected life of 5 years, expected volatility of
36.65% and no dividends. The weighted average fair value of the warrants is $1.60. As at
December 31, 2007, no warrants had been exercised and all warrants are exercisable in
Canadian dollars.
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Interest expense on the debt facility of $1,218 (2006 – $205) was capitalized to property,
plant and equipment for the year ended December 31, 2007.

12 ASSET RETIREMENT OBLIGATION

During the year ended December 31, 2006, the Company recognized asset retirement
obligations in connection with the Orca Quarry.As a result, the Company recorded liabilities
totalling $1,540 in the year ended December 31, 2006 and increased capitalized property,
plant and equipment associated with the Orca Quarry by the same amount.

2007 2006
$ $

Obligation – beginning of year 1,510 –
Foreign exchange 265 (66)
Liabilities incurred – 1,540
Accretion expense 170 36
Obligation – end of year 1,945 1,510

A determination of the fair value of the liability assumes undiscounted estimated future
cash flows needed to settle the liability incurred to December 31, 2007 of approximately
$10,481, which are expected to be expended throughout the quarry life to 2030. These
estimated future cash flows have been discounted at credit-adjusted risk-free rate of 10.2%
and assumes an inflation rate of 2.75%. Included in security deposits (note 7) is a $1,020
(2006 – $429) term deposit required by the British Columbia Ministry of Energy and Mines
for reclamation at the end of the life of the Orca Quarry.

No asset retirement obligation has been provided for the Richmond Terminal based on
management’s estimation that the likelihood of an asset retirement obligation arising is
remote.

13  NON-CONTROLLING INTEREST
Non-controlling

interest in 
subsidiary

$

Balance – December 31, 2005 1,130
Equity contributions 881
Non-controlling interest share of losses (208)
Foreign exchange (28)
Balance – December 31, 2006 1,775
Non-controlling interest share of losses (293)
Foreign exchange 287
Balance – December 31, 2007 1,769

The Company holds an 88% interest in the Partnership formed to develop the Orca Quarry,
with the remaining 12% interest held by the Namgis. Non-controlling interest consists of the
minority interest’s share of the equity in the Partnership offset by the capital contributions
loaned to the minority interest by the Company.The principal terms of the loan agreement
between the Company and the Namgis are as follows:

• At the request of the Namgis, the Company will make advances to the Namgis to
enable them to make their required equity contributions to the Partnership.

• Advances made prior to a construction decision will bear interest at prime plus a small
margin. Advances made after a construction decision will bear substantially higher
interest rates, reflective of the equity nature of the funding.

• The Company’s sole recourse for repayment is to the distributions receivable by the
Namgis from the Partnership, after repayment of any approved third party who has
loaned the Namgis funds for equity contributions.Advances made after a construction
decision are repayable solely from those distributions and cannot be prepaid.

The Company has made advances to the Namgis, through a subsidiary, in order to enable
the Namgis to meet its funding obligations to the Company. Due to the uncertainty
associated with the recoverability, the Company has never recorded interest receivable
on the Namgis loan.
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14  SHARE CAPITAL

Authorized
Unlimited common shares without par value 

Issued
2007 2006

Number of Number of 
common Amount common Amount

shares $ shares $

Balance – beginning of year 29,650 79,820 12,997 16,019
For cash 6,900 52,923 16,628 68,711
Share issue costs – (3,105) – (5,081)
On exercise of stock options 775 2,135 25 171
Balance – end of year 37,325 131,773 29,650 79,820

a) Common shares
In March 2007, the Company issued 6,900 common shares at $7.67 (CDN$9.00) per
common share for gross proceeds of $52,923 (CDN$62,100).A cash commission equal to
5.0% of the gross proceeds was paid to the underwriters.

In January 2006, the Company completed an initial public offering of 16,628 common
shares at $4.13 (CDN$4.80) per share for net proceeds of $63,630 (CDN$73,938).A cash
commission equal to 6.0% of the gross proceeds was paid to the agent.

b) Stock options
The Company established an incentive stock option plan (the Plan) on April 23, 2002. In
September 2005, the Company amended the Plan to increase the exercise period of
options granted and to be granted from five years to a maximum of 10 years.The Board of
Directors (the Board) determines the exercise price of an option, but the price shall not be
less than the fair market value of a common share on the date it is granted. Vesting and
other terms are at the discretion of the Board. On May 16, 2006 the Company amended the
Plan to allow the number of options outstanding under the Plan to be equal to 10% of the
outstanding common shares of the Company and permits options that have been
exercised to be available for subsequent grants under the Plan. The amended Plan also
prohibits the reduction of the exercise price of any outstanding options without prior
shareholder approval. The Board administers the Plan, whereby it may from time to time
grant options to directors, senior officers, employees, consultants, personal holding
companies and certain registered plans. As at December 31, 2007, the maximum options
to be allowed outstanding under the plan are 3,732 (2006 – 2,965) and all options are
exercisable in Canadian dollars.

Weighted 
average 
exercise

Number price
outstanding $ Expiry date

At December 31, 2005 1,563 1.53 2011 - 2015
Granted 595 4.48 2013 - 2016
Exercised (25) 4.24 2016
Cancelled (25) 4.30 2016
At December 31, 2006 2,108 2.25 2011 - 2016
Granted 1,406 13.77 2017
Exercised (775) 1.95 2011 - 2016
Cancelled – – –
At December 31, 2007 2,739 8.61 2011 - 2017

As at December 31, 2007, 2,484 (2006 – 1,806) options were exercisable at a weighted
average exercise price of $8.74 (2006 – $1.89).

The following table summarizes outstanding and exercisable share options at December
31, 2007:

Weighted
Average

Exercise Remaining
Options Options Price Contractual

Outstanding Exercisable Expiry Date $ Life (years)

220 220 April 23, 2011 0.76 3.31
125 125 March 1, 2012 0.81 4.17
77 77 October 21, 2012 1.01  4.81
77 77 January 16, 2013 2.02 5.05
80 20 June 30, 2013 4.84 5.50
50 50 October 1, 2013 2.52 5.75

113 113 January 15, 2014 2.77 6.04
100 100 May 1, 2014 4.04 6.34

4 4 August 16, 2014 2.77 6.63
133 133 January 20, 2015 4.04 7.06
195 195 January 23, 2016 4.84 8.07
119 21 May 16, 2016 5.65 8.36
39 6 September 18, 2016 5.04 8.72

1,407 1,343 October 4, 2017 13.87 9.76
2,739 2,484 8.61 7.87
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The options have been valued using the following option pricing model assumptions:

2007 2006

Average risk free rate 4.20% 4.06% - 4.38%
Expected life 5.39 years 3.5 - 10 years
Expected volatility 39.84% 36.65% - 45%
Expected dividends – –
Weighted average fair value per option $5.93 $2.16

The total stock-based compensation recorded in the year ended December 31, 2007 was
$8,284 (2006 – $937) which includes $60 (2006 – $103) capitalized to property, plant and
equipment.

The Black-Scholes option pricing model was developed for use in estimating the fair value
of traded options. Option pricing models require the input of highly subjective assumptions
including expected life and expected volatility. Changes in the subjective input assumptions
can materially affect the fair value estimate.

15 CONTRIBUTED SURPLUS
2007 2006

$ $

Balance – beginning of year 2,179 1,305
Stock-based compensation 8,284 937
Exercise of stock options (630) (63)
Balance – end of year 9,833 2,179

16  ACCUMULATED OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
$

Opening balances on adoption of new accounting standards 
Accumulated other comprehensive income at beginning of year 

currency translation adjustment (132)
Unrealized gains on cash and cash equivalents 37
Opening balances on adoption of new accounting standards (95)
Realization of gain on cash and cash equivalents (37)
Currency translation adjustment 20,610
Balance – end of year 20,478
Components of accumulated other comprehensive loss
Currency translation adjustment 20,478
Balance – end of year 20,478

17  COMMITMENTS

a) The following minimum payments are required under operating leases, related to rent,
equipment rentals and car leases, and aggregate throughput commitments at the
Company’s Richmond Terminal as at December 31, 2007:

$

2008 812
2009 903
2010 983
2011 977
2012 970
Thereafter 13,369

18,014

b) On commencement of shipping on April 1, 2007, the Company is committed to ship the
following tonnage through its initial marine freight contract. Failure by the Company to ship
its annual cargo commitment will result in a deadfreight charge equal to 75% of the freight
rate of the unshipped tonnes. The Company has the option in any given year, to carry
forward up to 25% of the yearly contracted tonnage into the following year.

Tons

First contract year 1,540
Second contract year 2,530
Third contract year 3,520
Fourth contract year 4,400
Fifth contract year and thereafter 4,950

c) During the year ended December 31, 2007, the Company entered into its second
shipping contract which commences in the third quarter of 2010. The Company has
committed to ship a minimum of 2,480 tons for the contract term of 15 years. Failure by the
Company to ship its annual cargo commitment will result in a deadfreight charge equal to
75% of the freight rate of the unshipped tonnes.The Company has the option in any given
year, to carry forward up to 25% of the yearly contracted tonnage into the following year.

d) During the third quarter of 2007, the Company entered into a long-term alliance (the
“Alliance”) with Cemex, Inc., an international construction materials company (“Cemex”).
The Alliance consists of a strategic alliance agreement, a supply and distribution
agreement, joint cooperation and development agreements and a standstill agreement.

The ten-year strategic alliance agreement sets out the exclusivity between the Company
and Cemex for the purchase and distribution of marine supplied construction aggregates,
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sand, gravel and crushed rock, on the west coast of the United States along with terms for
new terminal and quarry development related to those products. An Alliance Committee,
comprised of two members from each company, will oversee the ongoing operations of the
Alliance. The agreement has an option to be extended for additional ten-year terms upon
mutual agreement by the Company and Cemex.

The twenty-year supply and distribution agreement for marine transported construction
aggregates provides for Cemex to be the exclusive marketer of the Company’s sand and
gravel and for the Company to be the exclusive supplier to Cemex for its own internal use
and for sales to third parties in Northern California (excluding the counties of Marin,
Sonoma, Mendocino and Napa).The agreement provides for minimum tonnage which the
Company must supply and Cemex must purchase each year and a market pricing
mechanism for those tons which is adjusted annually. If Cemex fails to purchase, in any
given year, the minimum tonnage or the Company fails to supply those tons, then the party
which fails to meet the commitment is required to pay a per ton fee for any shortfall. This
agreement automatically renews for two, ten-year periods, subject to not exceeding the life
of the Orca Quarry and a five-year termination notice.

The ten-year joint cooperation and development agreements provide a mechanism through
which the Company and Cemex will work together to pursue and develop new construction
aggregate marine receiving terminals in Washington, Oregon and California (except for
the counties of Marin, Sonoma, Mendocino and Napa). A Development Committee,
comprised of two members from each company, will use their best efforts to identify
terminals opportunities that are acceptable to both companies. Each new terminal
development will be entered into contemporaneously with a supply and distribution
agreement which sets out the exclusive area served by that terminal. In the event that
either party does not wish to pursue a proposed terminal development, the proposing
party is free to pursue the development of that terminal unencumbered, but with the loss
of exclusivity for supply or distribution, as the case may be, related to the area served by
that terminal. The agreement has an option to be extended for additional ten-year terms
upon mutual agreement by the Company and Cemex.

18  INCOME TAXES

a) The recovery of income taxes shown in the statements of operations and deficit differs
from the amounts obtained by applying statutory rates to the loss before provision for
income taxes due to the following:

2007 2006

Statutory tax rate 34.12% 34.12%

$ $

Loss for the year before taxes (18,404) (3,541)

2007 2006
$ $

Provision for income taxes based on statutory 
Canadian combined federal and 
provincial income tax rates (6,279) (1,208)

Difference in foreign tax rates (63) (16)
Future tax benefit to the non-controlling interest and other (107) (71)
Accounting charges having no tax basis 2,806 285
Non-deductible expense 1,252 –
Foreign exchange and other items 787 –
Tax assets for which an income tax benefit 

has not been recognized 1,873 1,010
269 –
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b) The significant components of the Company’s future tax asset, assuming a future tax
rate of 30.83% and 41.00% (2006 – 32.41% and 41.22%), are as follows:

2007 2006
$ $

Future income tax assets
Non-capital losses 8,248 5,487
Property, plant and equipment – 69
Asset retirement obligation 600 415
Share issuance costs 2,160 1,550
Capital leases 1,003 1,033
Other 538 –

12,549 8,554
Valuation allowance (8,775) (5,786)
Future income tax assets – net 3,774 2,768
Future income tax liabilities
Property, plant and equipment 3,774 2,768
Future income tax liabilities 3,774 2,768
Future income tax liabilities – net – –

c) The Company has Canadian non-capital loss carry-forwards of $25,724 that may be
available for tax purposes. The non-capital losses expire as follows:

Canada United States
$ $

2009 413 –
2010 1,488 –
2014 2,407 –
2015 188 –
2022 – 5
2023 – 853
2024 – 616
2025 – 998
2026 3,004 494
2027 11,299 195
2028 3,764 –

22,563 3,161

19  RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

During the years ended December 31, 2007 and 2006, directors, either directly or through
a company controlled by them, provided services to the Company, as follows:

a) Marketing services at a cost of $508 (2006 – $271).

b) Technical services at a cost of $51 (2006 – $nil) included in General and administrative
expenses.

At December 31, 2007, accounts payable of $61 (2006 – $32) was due to a company
controlled by a common director.

Transactions with related parties are recorded at the exchange amount, being the price
agreed between the parties.

20  SEGMENTED FINANCIAL INFORMATION

The Company operates in one segment: the development and operation of construction
aggregates properties and projects located in western North America.

The Company’s sales were to one customer in Vancouver, BC and four customers in the
United States of America comprising 100% of the Company’s sales. The customers with
significant sales are as follows:

$

Customer A 6,010
Customer B 4,813
Customer C 1,727

The Company’s geographic segment information is as follows:

2007 2006

Property, Property,
plant and plant and

Revenue equipment Revenue equipment
$ $ $ $

United States 13,977 39,007 – 14,931
Canada 1,490 72,647 – 56,524

15,467 111,654 – 71,455



FROM STRENGTH TO STRENGTH 63

21  SUPPLEMENTAL CASH FLOW INFORMATION

Non-cash investing and financing activities
Property, plant and equipment additions of $1,665 (2006 – $14,688) are financed by
accounts payable, accruals and capital lease obligations. Recording an asset retirement
obligation resulted in a non-cash increase in property, plant and equipment of $nil (2006
– $1,540). Interest paid during year was $1,489 (2006 – $243).

22  FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Fair value 
The fair values of accounts receivable, deposits and accounts payable and accruals
approximate their carrying values due to their short-term nature. The Company estimates
that the fair value of the capital leases approximates their carrying value at December 31,
2007.

Credit risk
Financial instruments that potentially subject the Company to credit risk consist of cash and
cash equivalents and accounts receivable. The Company deposits cash and cash
equivalents with high credit quality financial institutions. The Company has five customers
and in the normal course of business, is exposed to credit risk relating to accounts
receivable from these customers. The Company is exposed to significant credit risk in
relation to it’s investment in asset-backed commercial paper (note 6).The maximum credit
risk exposure for the Company as at December 31, 2007 was $7,828 (2006 – $40).

Foreign exchange risk
The Company does not use any derivative instruments to reduce its exposure to
fluctuations in foreign currency exchange rates.

Interest rate risk
The Company is not exposed to significant interest rate risk.The Company’s capital leases
and loan receivable are at fixed rates. The Company’s cash and cash equivalents that are
used to finance working capital, which is short-term in nature, are at floating rates.

23  SUBSEQUENT EVENT

Other than disclosed elsewhere, subsequent to December 31, 2007, the Company entered
into an Agreement of Purchase and Sale to acquire a 12.4 acre site within Pier B in the Port
of Long Beach, California for $23.5 million dollars. The Company placed a $1 million
deposit on the land and has 120 days in which to complete its due diligence before closing.
If the Company is not satisfied with the results of the due diligence, the Company may
terminate the agreement with full refund of the deposit plus interest. Cemex has the right
to participate on a 50/50 basis with the purchase and development of the Pier B lands in
accordance with the strategic alliance agreement.
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